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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of China
Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to report that the Company
together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) achieved rapid
growth in its results for the year 2012 with sale revenue
of HK$1,155.6 million, representing an increase of 16.1%
when comparing with the corresponding period of last
year, the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
reached HK$197.6 million, representing an increase of
72.3% when comparing with the corresponding period of
last year.

In 2012, through various measures including increasing
investment in technology research, adjusting product
mix and expanding market promotion, the Group had
sustained its growth and achieved flourishing results with
its sale revenue reaching all-time high. In particular, sale
revenue of social security card chips had exceeded HK$300
million, sale revenue of telecommunications card chips
had exceeded HK$200 million, sale revenue of identity
card chips as well as electric card chips had exceeded
HK$100 million, with the aforesaid four types of products
representing over 80% of the sale revenue. By targeting
at the social security, telecommunications, electricity and
petroleum sectors, the Group introduced a number of
advanced products that featuring high functionality, high
security and low consumption to meet customer needs,
thereby successfully consolidated and expanded the leading
position of our principal products in different industry
sectors.
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Looking forward into 2013, with the continuing increase in
investment in the banking, social security and Internet of
Things sectors domestically, the overall market size of the
PRC smart cards industry is expected to grow at a steady
pace. Nevertheless, due to factors like increasing domestic
economic difficulties and slowing down in economic
growth, it is expected that market competition will further
intensify. Facing such increasingly complicated external
environment, the Group will proactively respond to market
changes, continue to be innovative in its business vision,
fine-tune and optimize its product mix. The Group will
continue to leverage on its strengths, deepen its technology
innovation. The Group will also seek opportunities in
expanding into new business coverage, extend its industry
value chain, and add value to the business and improve
profitability, so as to bring rewarding returns to our
shareholders.

Mr. Fan Qingwu resigned as managing director and
executive director of the Company in August last year. Mr.
Wong Po Yan also resigned as independent non-executive
director of the Company in November last year. On behalf
of the Board, | would like to thank both of them for their
invaluable contributions over the years.

On behalf of the Board, | am delighted to welcome Mr. Xie
Qinghua as managing director and executive director of the
Company and Mr. Qiu Hongsheng as independent non-
executive director of the Company. The new directors, with
their extensive experience and impressive credentials, will
no doubt extend the diversity and refresh the talent base of
the Board.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all staff
members for their contributions and efforts in the past year.
I would also like to express our most sincere gratitude to
our shareholders and business partners for their continuing
co-operation and support.

Rui Xiaowu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 February 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR D

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group's integrated circuits design business comprises
the design of integrated circuits chips and the development
of application system. Currently, our products are mainly
used in smart cards such as identity cards, social security
cards, telecommunications cards and electric cards. Our
products are also applied in wireless local area networks.
For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group has
obtained 20 new patents, and registered another 21
computer software copyrights and 12 integrated circuits
layout designs.

Due to the further intensification of market price
competition in 2012, the average selling prices of
integrated circuits chip products were generally lower when
comparing with those of the 2011. The Group on one hand
adjusted its product mix in its telecommunications card
chips business and concentrated on products which have a
lower selling price per unit but better gross profit margin,
also stepped up its effort in cost control and expanded the
market share of its products. Through successfully boosting
the sales of a number of our main products, the overall
sales volume recorded an increase of 35.2% for the year
ended 31 December 2012 and compensated the impact
of the decrease in the average selling prices of integrated
circuits chip products on the revenue for the year. Revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2012 amounted to
HK$1,155.6 million, representing an increase of 16.1%
when comparing with the corresponding period of last
year. For the year ended 31 December 2012, sales of a
number of our products recorded an increase in excess of
25% with more balanced product mix when comparing
with the corresponding period of last year. As the
combined effects of the improvement on the product mix
of the Group, increase in sales volume and effective cost
control had out-weighed the impact of the decrease in the
average selling prices of integrated circuits chip products
on the gross profit, the gross profit increased by 37.2% to
HK$451.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2012.
During the year, the overall gross profit margin, which was
still maintained at industry level, increased 6% to 39.1%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Selling and marketing costs increased by 38.8% to
HK$57.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2012.
This was mainly attributable to the increase in both the
overall sales volume and staff costs for the year.

Administrative expenses increased by 6.1% to HK$200.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2012. This
was mainly attributable to the increase in research and
development costs, increase in staff costs, the reversal of
provision for trade receivables and the decrease in other
administrative expenses resulting from streamlining its
administrative team. Research and development costs were
HK$163.4 million in 2012 (2011: HK$139 million), which
represented 14.1% of the revenue for the year ended 31
December 2012 (2011: 14%). Research and development
during the year primarily focused on the EMV card, mobile
payment card and RFID (“radio frequency identification”)
chip products.

Government grants recognised as income increased by
6.8% to HK$30.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2012 resulted from more government subsidies for research
and development costs incurred by the Group in 2012.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the profit
attributable to owners of the Company was HK$197.6
million (2011: HK$114.7 million), and the basic earnings
per share was HK11.68 cents (2011: HK6.78 cents).

The board of directors does not recommend the payment
of final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012
(2011: nil).

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Group finances its operations primarily by internal
resources and short term bank loans. At 31 December
2012, the Group had cash and cash equivalents amounting
to HK$476.6 million, 77.5% of which was denominated in
Renminbi, 22% in United States dollars and 0.5% in Hong
Kong dollars (2011: HK$329.5 million, 68% of which was
denominated in Renminbi, 31.8% in United States dollars
and 0.2% in Hong Kong dollars).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR DN

At 31 December 2012, the Group had unsecured
short term bank loans of HK$1.2 million, which were
denominated in Renminbi (2011: HK$24.7 million, which
were denominated in Renminbi). The bank loans were
borrowed at contracted fixed interest rate. At 31 December
2012, committed borrowing facilities available to the
Group but not drawn amounted to HK$171.4 million. The
Group's revenue are mainly denominated in Renminbi and
payments are denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities that
are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency. The Group will make use of hedging
contracts, when appropriate, to hedge the risk of foreign
exchange fluctuation arising from its operations.

At 31 December 2012, the Group had net current assets
of HK$736.5 million (2011: HK$555.3 million). The overall
gearing ratio, which is calculated as the total liabilities over
total assets of the Group, was 40.3% (2011: 42.4%).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any
pledged asset (2011: nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any
material capital commitment (2011: nil) for the acquisition
of fixed assets and intangible assets. The Group did not
have any material contingent liability at 31 December 2012
(2011: nil).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

At 31 December 2012, the Group had approximately 330
employees, the majority of whom were based in the PRC.
Employee benefit expenses for the year were HK$126.8
million.

The Group recognises the importance of high calibre and
competent staff and has a strict recruitment policy and
performance appraisal scheme. Remuneration policies are
largely in line with industry practices, and are formulated
on the basis of performance and experience and will be
reviewed regularly. Bonuses and other merit payments
are linked with the performance of the Group and of the
individuals as incentive to optimise performance.

M2012F 123310 A BENEEFRBIRTE
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The Company is committed to achieving the best corporate
governance practices by emphasising its accountability,
transparency, independence, responsibility and fairness. The
Company is dedicated to exercise corporate governance
through regular reviews of its adopted practices with
reference to the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company has complied with all the applicable code
provisions in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(effective up to 31 March 2012) and the CG Code
(effective from 1 April 2012) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2012, except for the deviation from the code provision
A.6.7 of the CG Code as summarised below. The following
summarises the corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
consists of two executive directors, two non-executive
directors and three independent non-executive directors.
The roles of the chairman of the Board are segregated
from the managing director. The chairman of the Board is
responsible for leading and overseeing the functioning of
the Board and the strategic development of the Group.
The managing director is delegated with the authority and
responsible for managing the Group’s business, and the
implementation of the Group's strategies in achieving the
overall business objectives. The position of the chairman of
the Board and the managing director are held separately
by Mr. Rui Xiaowu and Mr. Xie Qinghua, respectively.
Such division of responsibilities helps to reinforce their
independence and accountability. There are no financial,
business, family or other material relationships among the
directors (including the chairman of the Board and the
managing director).

All the directors, including the non-executive directors,
will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
every three years in accordance with the Listing Rules and
the bye-laws of the Company. The remuneration of the
directors are determined with reference to their duties,
responsibilities and experience, and to the prevailing market
conditions.

Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Report
DEBRGE

The Board is responsible for the formulation of long term
business objectives, strategies and plans, and to monitor
and control the operating and financial performance of the
Group. The day-to-day operations and implementation of
business objectives are delegated to the managing director.
The management is delegated with proper authority to
carry out daily operations and duties.

The Board has the power and is responsible for appointing
new directors to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board. The Board will consider whether the candidate’s
skills, knowledge and experience meet the requirements
of the Company when considering a nomination. In 2012,
Board meetings were held to consider and approve the
appointment of Mr. Xie Qinghua as managing director and
executive director of the Company and Mr. Qiu Hongsheng
as independent non-executive director of the Company.
When considering these appointments, the Board has
applied the above mentioned criteria and procedures.

All directors have actively participated in the review and
monitoring of the Company’s business. The Board meets
regularly and at least 4 times a year. Between scheduled
meetings, the senior management of the Group provides
information to directors on a regular basis regarding
the activities and development in the businesses of the
Group. The directors have full access to information on the
Group and independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense. With respect to
regular meetings of the Board, the directors will be given
written notice of the meeting at least 14 days in advance
and an agenda with supporting Board papers no less than
3 days prior to the meeting. For other meetings, directors
are given as much notice as is reasonable and practicable
in the circumstances. If a director has a conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board
has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with
by a physical Board meeting. Independent non-executive
directors who, and whose associates, have no material
interest in the transaction should be present at that Board
meeting. All minutes of Board and Board committee
meetings are kept by the company secretary to record
in sufficient details the matters considered and decisions
reached by the Board or Board committee, including any
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concerns raised or dissenting views expressed by any
director. These minutes are available for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any director. The
attendance record of the directors at the annual general
meeting, Board and Board committee meetings held in
2012 are set out in the table on page 19 of the annual
report. Besides providing sufficient time and attention to
the affairs of the Group, all directors have disclosed to
the Company the number and nature of the offices held
in other public companies or organisations and other
significant commitments, and updated the Company on
any subsequent changes in a timely manner. Appropriate
insurance covers on directors’ liabilities have been in force
to protect the directors from their risk exposure arising from
the business of the Group.

The directors acknowledge the need to continue to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills for
making contributions to the Company. The participation
by individual directors in the continuous professional
development programme with appropriate emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company
in 2012 is recorded in the table below.

Corporate Governance Report
DEBRGE
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Corporate Governance Report
DEBRGE

Mr. Wong Po Yan was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held in April 2012 (the "AGM")
due to other crucial business commitment. However, Mr.
Wong subsequently requested the company secretary
of the Company to report to him on the views of the
shareholders of the Company in the AGM. As such the
Board considers that the development of a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders among the
independent non-executive directors and other non-
executive directors was ensured.

The biographies of the directors are set out on pages 20 to
23 of the annual report.

THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS (THE “MODEL CODE")

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules to regulate the directors’
securities transactions. All directors have confirmed,
following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have
fully complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2012.

REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

The Board resolved to change the name of its remuneration
committee to remuneration and nomination committee
and amended its terms of reference on 30 March 2012
to reflect the new requirements as set out in the revised
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The remuneration and
nomination committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Qiu Hongsheng, Mr. Chan
Kay Cheung and Mr. Yin Yongli and an executive director
Mr. Xie Qinghua. Mr. Qiu Hongsheng is the chairman of
the remuneration and nomination committee. The terms of
reference of the remuneration and nomination committee,
which described its authority and duties, is available on the
Company'’s website.
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The principal responsibilities of the remuneration
and nomination committee include reviewing and
recommending to the Board the remuneration policy
and the remuneration of the directors and the senior
management, to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's
corporate goals and objectives, to determine, with
delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management, to
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive directors, responsible for identification
and recommendation to the Board of possible appointees
as directors, making recommendations to the Board on
matters relating to appointment or re-appointment of
directors, succession planning for directors and assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive
directors.

During the year, the remuneration and nomination
committee held four meetings. The attendance record of
the committee members at these meetings are set out
in the table on page 19 of the annual report. The work
performed by the remuneration and nomination committee
during the year included reviewing the remuneration
policy and the remuneration of the directors and the
senior management, determining the remuneration of
the executive directors, making recommendation to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of directors,
and assessing the independence of the independent non-
executive directors.

Remuneration payable to senior management (excluding
directors) for the year ended 31 December 2012 is within
the HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 band. Details of
the remuneration of the directors for the year ended 31
December 2012 are set out on pages 75 to 77 of the
annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Kay Cheung, Mr.
Qiu Hongsheng and Mr. Yin Yongli. Mr. Chan Kay Cheung
is the chairman of the audit committee. The members have
extensive experience in financial matters and one of them is
a certified public accountant. The terms of reference of the
audit committee, which described its authority and duties,
is available on the Company’s website.

The audit committee provides an independent review
and supervision of financial reporting, and examines the
effectiveness of the internal controls of the Group and
ensuring the external auditor are independent and the
effectiveness of the audit process. The audit committee
examines all matters relating to the accounting principles
and policies adopted by the Group, auditing functions,
internal controls, risk management and financial reporting.
External auditor and the directors are invited to attend the
committee meetings as and when necessary. The audit
committee also serves as a channel of communication
between the Board and the external auditor.

During the year, the audit committee held two meetings.
The attendance record of the committee members at these
meetings are set out in the table on page 19 of the annual
report. The work performed by the audit committee during
the year included reviewing the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2011, the unaudited consolidated interim
financial statements of the Group for the six months
ended 30 June 2012 and the effectiveness of the internal
control practices of the Group. The audit committee has
also reviewed the audit plan and approach of the external
auditor and monitored the progress and results of the audit
regularly.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the fees payable
to the Company’s external auditor in respect of audit
and non-audit services provided to the Company and its
subsidiaries is set out below:

Corporate Governance Report

SREARE

SIS A% B A

REZE2012F12A31BIEFE  shARQ A R HEH
B AR ERENEZMIEEZRE R AR T INE
ZHAEMNEBREY T

2012

201245

HK$'000

FET

Audit services EIZIRTE 1,497
Non-audit services (included tax matters, FEZRE (RREHFEE FHK

review and other reporting services) H AR ARTS ) 412

1,909

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flow during the reporting period. A statement from
the auditor about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out on pages 37 to 39 of the
annual report. In preparing the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2012, the directors have selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently
and have made prudent and reasonable judgments and
estimates and have prepared the financial statements on
a going concern basis. The Board has (a) reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group,
including all the material controls in financial, operational
and compliance and risk management functions, (b) has
considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and the budget
of the Company's accounting and financial reporting
function, and (c) has held discussion with the Group’s
external auditor, to ensure that a sound internal control
system is maintained and operated by the management in
compliance with the agreed procedures and standards.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a special
general meeting

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws and the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda, registered shareholders holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
registered office of the Company at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention
of the Board or the company secretary of the Company
to require a special general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such special general meeting shall be
held within two months from the date of deposit of such
requisition.

The written requisition must be signed by the registered
shareholders concerned and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more of
these shareholders. The written requisition will be verified
with the Company’s share registrars and upon their
confirmation that the requisition is proper and in order,
the company secretary of the Company will ask the Board
to convene a special general meeting by serving sufficient
notice in accordance with the statutory and regulatory
requirements to all the registered shareholders. On the
contrary, if the written requisition has been verified as not
in order, the shareholders concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, a special general meeting will not
be convened as requested.

If within twenty one days from the date of deposit of
the requisition the Board fails to proceed to convene a
special general meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene a special general
meeting, but any special general meeting so convened shall
be held within three months from the date of deposit of
such requisition.
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Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals
at a general meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, either
any number of the registered shareholders holding not
less than one-twentieth (5%) of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company, or not less than 100 registered
shareholders, can request the Company in writing to
(a) give to shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
next general meeting notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting; and (b) circulate to shareholders entitled to have
notice of any general meeting any statement of not more
than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in
any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at
that meeting.

The written requisition and a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses for serving
the notice of the resolution and circulating the statement
submitted by the registered shareholders concerned in
accordance with the statutory and regulatory requirements
to all the registered shareholders must be deposited at the
registered office of the Company at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention
of the company secretary of the Company not less than six
weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution; and not less than one week before
the meeting in the case of any other requisition; and where
an annual general meeting is called for a date six weeks
or less after the requisition requiring notice of a resolution
has been deposited, the requisition though not deposited
within the time required shall be deemed to have been
properly deposited for such purpose.

The written requisition must be signed by the registered
shareholders concerned and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more
of these shareholders. The written requisition will be
verified with the Company’s share registrars and upon
their confirmation that the requisition is proper and
in order, the company secretary of the Company will
ask the Board to include the resolution in the agenda
for the general meeting, and serving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement submitted by the
registered shareholders concerned in accordance with the
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statutory and regulatory requirements to all the registered
shareholders. On the contrary, if the written requisition has
been verified as not in order, the shareholders concerned
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the
proposed resolution will not be included in the agenda for
the general meeting.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, a registered
shareholder duly qualified to attend and vote at the general
meeting wishes to propose a person other than a director
of the Company for election as a director at the general
meeting, (1) his/her written notice of intention to propose a
candidate for election as a director at the general meeting;
(2) a written notice signed by the nominated candidate of
the candidate’s willingness to be elected; (3) the nominated
candidate’s information as required to be disclosed under
Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; and (4) the nominated
candidate’s written consent to the publication of his/
her personal data must be validly served either to the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Room 3403, 34th Floor, China Resources Building, 26
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong; or to the Company's
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Tricor Abacus Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no earlier than
the day after the dispatch of notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and no later than seven days
prior to the date of such general meeting.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the
Board in writing through the company secretary of the
Comapny whose contact details are as follows:

Room 3403, 34th Floor, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2598 9018

Email: investor@cecholdings.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meetings of the Company.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT MEETINGS

Details of the director’s attendance at the annual general
meeting, Board and Board committee meetings held in
2012 are set out in the table below:
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Meetings attended/held
C]-9/8 Va-£ VN |
Remuneration
and
nomination Annual
Audit committee general
committee FMR meeting
Notes Board** B £ &3
Hist Exg ZE®g ZEg BEXE
Non-executive directors FHTES
Rui Xiaowu R 5/5* 171
Zhao Guiwu HER 5/5 11
Executive directors BTEE
Xie Qinghua SEE 7 22 il
Liu Jinping s 3/4 11
Fan Qingwu T 2 212 33 "N
Independent BYEHTES
non-executive directors
Chan Kay Cheung BREE 5/5 22* 4/4 17
Qiu Hongsheng Bk A 3 I
Yin Yongli FokFl 5/5 212 4/4 11
Wong Po Yan BIRM 4 4/4 212 4/4% on
* Chairman * FE
*% Included a Board meeting where the chairman of the Board o A —REFECHECHEFSFEIEREHNT

met with non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) without the executive directors and
management present.

Notes:

1. Appointed on 24 August 2012
2. Resigned on 24 August 2012

3. Appointed on 1 November 2012
4. Resigned on 1 November 2012
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EENEREEAERHE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Rui Xiaowu, aged 53, is the Chairman of the
Company. Mr. Rui graduated from the Science &
Technology University for National Defense of China in
1982 with a major in Computer Software, was a Master’s
postgraduate and a Research Fellow, and was awarded
the “Government Special Allowance” by the State Council
of the PRC. Mr. Rui is the chairman of China Electronics
Corporation Limited (“CEC"), the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Rui was previously the
director of the 710 Research Institute of the Ministry of
Aerospace Industry of China, the assistant general manager
of China Aerospace Science & Technology Corporation,
the general manager of China Satellite Communications
Corporation and the deputy general manager of China
Aerospace Science & Technology Corporation. Mr. Rui
was also the chairman of China Satellite Communications
Corporation Limited, the chairman and a non-executive
director of China Aerospace International Holdings Limited,
the chairman of Navinfo Company Limited (a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange), the chairman of
China Spacesat Company Limited (a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange), the chairman, president
and an executive director of China Aerospace International
Holdings Limited, the chairman and an executive director of
CASIL Telecommunications Holdings Limited, the chairman
and a non-executive director of APT Satellite Holdings
Limited. Mr. Rui joined the Company in August 2011.
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Mr. Zhao Guiwu, aged 50, is the Vice Chairman of the
Company. Mr. Zhao graduated from Tianjin University and
holds a postgraduate degree in Inorganic Non-metallic
Materials and is a senior engineer. Mr. Zhao is the chairman
of Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd (a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange), the chairman of Shanghai
Huahong Integrated Circuit Co., Ltd, the vice chairman
of Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd, a director of Hua
Hong Semiconductor Ltd, a director of Shanghai Huahong
NEC Electronics Company Ltd and a non-executive director
of Solomon Systech (International) Limited. From 2002
to 2006, Mr. Zhao was in charge of the Planning Division
of the Department of Corporate Planning of China
Electronics Technology Group Corporation and a director
and the deputy general manager of CETC Deging Huaying
Electronics Co., Ltd. From 2006 to 2008, Mr. Zhao was
the deputy general manager of the Strategic Planning
Department of CEC. From 2008 to 2009, Mr. Zhao was
the general manager of the Planning and Development
Department of CEC. Mr. Zhao joined the Company in July
2010.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xie Qinghua, aged 45, is the Managing Director
of the Company. Mr. Xie graduated from the School
of Economics and Management of Beijing Institute
of Technology and holds a postgraduate degree in
Business Administration. Mr. Xie is the chairman of China
Electronics Technology Development Co., Ltd, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the ultimate controlling shareholder
of the Company. Mr. Xie was in charge of the Overseas
Cooperation Department of CEC, the general manager of
the Strategic Planning Department of China Great Wall
Computer (Group) Corporation, the assistant general
manager and the secretary to the board of directors
of Great Wall Broadband Network Service Co., Ltd,
the general manager of Beijing Branch of Great Wall
Broadband Network Service Co., Ltd, the general manager
of Shenzhen Great Wall Broadband Network Service
Co., Ltd, the assistant general manager of Aerostrong
Technology Co., Ltd, and in charge of the general manager
office and the project manager of the Communication
Network Department of Jitong Communications Limited.
Mr. Xie joined the Company in August 2012.
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Mr. Liu Jinping, aged 60, Mr. Liu graduated from the
Department of Radio Engineering of Beijing Institute of
Technology and is a senior engineer. Since 2003, Mr. Liu
is the general manager of China Integrated Circuit Design
Corp., Ltd (“China Huada”), the Company’s substantial
shareholder, and the chairman of various subsidiaries of
China Huada, which include Nationz Technologies Inc.
(@ company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) and
Beijing Huada Zhibao Electronic System Co., Ltd. From
1994 to 2002, Mr. Liu was the deputy general manager of
the SDIC Electronic Co. From 2002 to 2003, Mr. Liu was
the deputy general manager of SDIC Venture Capital Co.,
Ltd. Mr. Liu was appointed director of the Company in July
2010.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kay Cheung, aged 66, is a senior advisor of
The Bank of East Asia, Limited, the vice chairman of The
Bank of East Asia (China) Limited and the chairman of
Shaanxi Fuping BEA Rural Bank Corporation. Mr. Chan
was an executive director and the deputy chief executive
of The Bank of East Asia, Limited. Mr. Chan joined The
Bank of East Asia, Limited in 1965 and possesses extensive
knowledge and experience in the banking industry. Mr.
Chan is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers, a member of the Process Review Committee for
the oversight of Hong Kong Monetary Authority, a member
of the Clearing and Settlement Systems Appeals Tribunal,
a member of the Committee of Overseers of Lee Woo Sing
College, The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a member
of The China Unionpay International Advisory Group and
an international senior economic consultant of The People’s
Government of Shaanxi Province. Mr. Chan is also an
independent non-executive director of Chu Kong Shipping
Enterprises (Group) Company Limited (formerly known
as Chu Kong Shipping Development Company Limited),
Dah Chong Hong Holdings Limited, Hong Kong Food
Investment Holdings Limited and SOCAM Development
Limited. Mr. Chan was appointed director of the Company
in May 1997.
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Mr. Qiu Hongsheng, aged 48, Mr. Qiu graduated
from the School of Management of Harbin Institute
of Technology and holds a postgraduate degree in
Management Science and Engineering; and is a Certified
Public Valuer in the PRC, a Certified Senior Enterprise Risk
Manager in the PRC and a senior economist. Mr. Qiu is
an executive director and the general manager of China
Consultants of Advisory and Finance Management Co., Ltd.
Mr. Qiu worked in 710 Research Institute of the Ministry
of Aerospace Industry of China as an economic analyst
for a number of years. Mr. Qiu joined China Consultants
of Advisory and Finance Management Co., Ltd (formerly
known as China Financial and Accounting Consulting
Company), a company directly managed by the State
Ministry of Finance of the PRC, in 1994 and focuses on
management consulting and corporation restructuring
transactions. Mr. Qiu possesses a wealth of professional
knowledge and practical experiences on corporate finance,
mergers and acquisitions, strategic integration, meticulous
management, etc. Mr. Qiu is also an independent director
of Lingyun Industrial Corporation Limited, Beijing Tiantan
Biological Products Co., Ltd, and China National Software
& Service Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company (all being companies listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange). Mr. Qiu was appointed
director of the Company in November 2012.

Mr. Yin Yongli, aged 73, graduated from Shandong
Finance Institute. Mr. Yin is a Certified Public Accountant
in the PRC and has extensive experience in auditing and
financial management. From 2005 to 2008, Mr. Yin was
the chairman of Tianhua Certified Public Accountants.
He was the chairman of China Rightson Certified Public
Accountants and various audit firms in the PRC during the
period from 1999 to 2005. Before that, Mr. Yin worked in
the petrochemical industry in the PRC for over 35 years.
From 1985 to 1999, Mr. Yin held various senior positions
in the finance department of Sinopec Corporation. Mr. Yin
is the chairman of Beijing Tong Tai Insurance Brokerage
Limited and an independent director of China Merchants
Energy Shipping Co., Ltd. Mr. Yin was appointed director of
the Company in September 2004.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEAEHE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ng Kui Kwan, aged 51, is the company secretary of
the Company. Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Accounting from the University of Liverpool in England. Mr.
Ng is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ng has many
years of experience in auditing, finance and administration.
Mr. Ng joined the Company in November 2008.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) is the design, research and
development and sale of integrated circuits. The activities
of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 17 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 40 of the annual
report.

The board of directors does not recommend the payment
of final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012
(2011: nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group and the Company during the year are set out in
Note 15 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in Note 22 to the financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 44 of the annual
report and Note 23 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company had no distributable reserve at 31 December
2012 as calculated under the Company's bye-laws (2011: nil).
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 99
to 100 of the annual report.
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Report of the Directors

EEOHE

DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Non-executive Directors
Rui Xiaowu (Chairman)
Zhao Guiwu (Vice Chairman)

Executive Directors

Xie Qinghua (Managing Director)
(appointed on 24 August 2012)

Liu Jinping

Fan Qingwu (resigned on 24 August 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Chan Kay Cheung

Qiu Hongsheng (appointed on 1 November 2012)
Yin Yongli

Wong Po Yan (resigned on 1 November 2012)

Mr. Xie Qinghua and Mr. Qiu Hongsheng were appointed
as director by the board of directors on 24 August 2012
and 1 November 2012, respectively. Pursuant to Bye-
law 86(2), they will hold office only until the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1), Mr. Zhao Guiwu and Mr.
Liu Jinping will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the employing company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), and considers
them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2012, none of the directors nor the
chief executive of the Company and their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), which
were recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme adopted by the Company
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 20 June 2002
expired on 19 June 2012. During the period from 1 January
2012 to 19 June 2012, no share option was granted under
such share option scheme. During the year ended 31
December 2012, no share option was exercised, cancelled
or lapsed.

The Company had no outstanding share option at 1
January 2012 and 31 December 2012.
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Report of the Directors

EEOHE

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of
the Company or their respective associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions as disclosed in Note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements also fall under the
definition of “continuing connected transactions” within
the meaning of the Listing Rules. Details of certain of
these transactions which are subject to the reporting and
annual review requirements under the Listing Rules are
summarised as follows:

EERERDIES 2EF
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RERERZ
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BRERANT

Amount
&
Notes HK$'000
Type of transaction RS EHR Bt FHET
Sales of products to the CEC Group MABEETFEBEKRKEAFIHEE Iyii 101,099
2=
Purchase of raw materials and modules from the MR EE FEBKE QR RE i fii 584,997
CEC Group, provision of products processing, EMERESR RPRHETE
testing and assembling services by the EXKE R RREEMMNT
CEC Group EWSERESY b
Interest received from the CEC Group AP EEFEEKE QTR 1,235

LB
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Notes:

(iii)

China Electronics Corporation Limited (“CEC", together with
its subsidiaries, the “CEC Group”), is a connected person of
the Company by virtue of being the controlling shareholder of
the Company.

On 19 July 2010, the Company entered into the 2010-
2013 business services agreement (the “2010-2013 Business
Services Agreement”) with CEC. The 2010-2013 Business
Services Agreement took effect from 10 September 2010
and will expire on 30 June 2013. Pursuant to the 2010-
2013 Business Services Agreement, the CEC Group provides
products processing, testing and assembling services to the
Group, while the Group purchases raw materials and modules
from the CEC Group and sells products to the CEC Group.
Details of the 2010-2013 Business Services Agreement and
the related caps are set out in the circular dated 9 August
2010.

The Company has subsequently revised the caps for the
provision of products processing, testing and assembling
services by the CEC Group, and the purchase of raw materials
and modules from the CEC Group under the 2010-2013
Business Services Agreement. Details of the revised caps are
set out in the circular dated 19 September 2011.

Sales of products including integrated circuit cards and smart
cards modules and chips to the CEC Group. Sales of products
were based on the 2010-2013 Business Services Agreement.
All the transactions were carried out on normal commercial
terms and with reference to market prices.

Raw materials and modules purchased from the CEC Group
are for the Group's research and development of integrated
circuit cards, smart cards and chips. The CEC Group also
provides products processing, testing and assembling services
to the Group. Purchase of raw materials and modules from
the CEC Group and provision of products processing, testing
and assembling services by the CEC Group were based on the
2010-2013 Business Services Agreement. All the transactions
were carried out on normal commercial terms and with

reference to market prices.

Wi

(i)

(iii)
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EEOHE

On 19 July 2010, the Company entered into a
comprehensive financial services agreement (the “Financial
Services Agreement”) with China Electronics Corporation
Finance Co., Ltd (“CEC Finance”), a subsidiary of CEC.
The Financial Services Agreement took effect from 10
September 2010 and will expire on 30 June 2013. Pursuant
to the Financial Services Agreement, the financial services
provided by CEC Finance to the Group includes deposit
services, financial assistance and fee- and commission-
based financial services. Details of the Financial Services
Agreement and the related caps are set out in the circular
dated 9 August 2010.

Pursuant to the Financial Services Agreement, the interest
rates for the deposit services provided by CEC Finance are
determined by making reference to the standard interest
rates published by the People’s Bank of China for the
same type of deposits. Such interest rates will not be less
than the rates offered to the Group by other domestic
commercial banks for comparable deposits. The maximum
daily balance of deposits (together with the interests
accrued thereon) maintained by the Group with CEC
Finance shall not exceed RMB80 million and the Group's
actual balance of deposits with CEC Finance on any given
day during the year ended 31 December 2012 had not
exceeded such amount. For the provision of financial
assistance, the interest rates for the financial assistance
provided by CEC Finance to the Group are determined by
making reference to the standard interest rates published
by the People’s Bank of China for the same type of
financial assistance. Such interest rates will not be higher
than the rates offered to the Group by other domestic
commercial banks for comparable financial assistance.
The maximum amount of financial assistance provided
by CEC Finance to the Group shall not exceed RMB80
million on any given day and no financial assistance had
ever been granted to the Group pursuant to the Financial
Services Agreement during the year ended 31 December
2012. For the provision of fee- and commission-based
financial services, the fees and commissions for the fee-
and commission-based financial services provided by CEC
Finance to the Group are determined by reference to,
and shall not be higher than, the fees and commissions
charged by other domestic commercial banks or financial
institutions for the same type of financial services. The
cap for fees and commissions payable for the fee- and
commission-based financial services provided by CEC
Finance to the Group for the year ended 31 December
2012 is RMB4 million and no fee- and commission-based
financial service had ever been provided to the Group
pursuant to the Financial Services Agreement during the
year ended 31 December 2012.
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The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules with respect to the above continuing connected
transactions. The above continuing connected transactions
have been reviewed by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. In the opinion of the
independent non-executive directors of the Company, the
above continuing connected transactions were carried out
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group,
on normal commercial terms and were in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Based on the results of the work performed on the
above continuing connected transactions, the auditor has
confirmed in its letter to the board of directors that:

o nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have not been approved by
the Company’s board of directors;

o nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the transactions were not, in
all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

o nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the transactions were not
entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

o nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have exceeded their
respective maximum aggregate annual value as
disclosed in the previous announcements.
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EEOHE

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
following directors of the Company are considered to
have interests in businesses which compete or are likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group:

EERNBRFRB RS

REEARBEARER  THARREZHR
A AENEE ERNEZBEREF A ERK

B K

Nature of
director’s interest
Principal business in the entity
Name of director Name of entity of the entity EEREHAER
EEHR EREE ERCTEER ZESEME
Rui Xiaowu CEC (Note 1) Investment holdings Chairman
P9 B I HPERETFEE (AaET) AR BER
Zhao Guiwu Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd (Note 2) Manufacturing of Chairman
HER FEEREBRNBERAR (Hit2) integrated circuits BEER
K E R B
Shanghai Huahong Integrated Design of integrated circuits Chairman
Circuit Co., Ltd (Note 2) SRERKE FER
FHETERERER AT
(Kt5#2)
Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd ~ Design and manufacturing Vice chairman
(Note 2) of integrated circuits BEER
EREL (KE)ARAT SXERRGT REE
(Brat2)
Hua Hong Semiconductor Ltd Manufacturing of Director
(Note 2) integrated circuits ==t
EFEEERAF K E R E
(Kiat2)
Shanghai Huahong NEC Manufacturing of Director
Electronics Company Ltd (Note 2) integrated circuits o
EBELANECETHER AR ERERRE
(Kiat2)
Liu Jinping China Integrated Circuit Investment holdings General manager
2I&F Design Corp., Ltd (Note 2) REER GECEE
FEZERENEEETEE
BRRATR (K1i22)
Nationz Technologies Inc (Note 2) Design of integrated circuits Chairman
BREMRODERAR (AiE2) SRR ERE EER
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Notes:

M CEC is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company.
CEC is a state-owned nationwide electronics and information
technology conglomerate, and has subsidiaries or associates
engaging in integrated circuits related businesses which
compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

(2) These companies are engaging in, or have subsidiaries or
associates engaging in, integrated circuits related businesses
which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.

The above mentioned competing businesses are operated
and managed by independent management and
administration. The board of directors of the Company
exercises independent judgment and is always acting for
the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole. Accordingly, the Group is capable of carrying on its
business independently of, and at arm’s length from, the
competing businesses mentioned above.

SHAREHOLDERS WITH NOTIFIABLE
INTERESTS

At 31 December 2012, the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO showed
that the following persons (other than the director or chief
executive of the Company) had notified the Company that
they had an interest of 5% or more in the issued share
capital of the Company:
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201241283318 RIBEFBHF K HE K H 5336
BARARBEFE 2 ERMAI R~ THAL (AR
REEAGEERTHRABRINEMNEARARARKES
BEARRRBBITIRAS%EIA £ 2w

Number or
attributable
number of
shares
interested Percentage
BEREWN of shareholding
Name of interested party BERERERR BB BFERESHK
China Electronics Corporation China Electronics Corporation 812,500,000 48.03%
(BVI) Holdings Company (BVI) Holdings Company
Limited (“CEC (BVI)") Limited ([ CEC (BVI) )
China Integrated Circuit Design R KEKE KR T EE 393,680,000 23.27%
Corp., Ltd (“China Huada") BRAR([HREZEKX])
CEC (Notes 1 and 2) REEFEE (HiF1k2) 1,206,180,000 71.30%
SDIC High-Tech Investment Co., Ltd BRI EBRA A 393,680,000 23.27%
(Note 1) (HtaE1)
The State Development and Investment B BIZE L E N Al (A15E7) 393,680,000 23.27%

Corporation (Note 1)
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Notes:

(M The equity interest of China Huada is contributed as to
50% by CEC and as to 50% by SDIC High-Tech Investment
Co., Ltd. SDIC High-Tech Investment Co., Ltd is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of The State Development and Investment
Corporation, which is a state-owned investment holding
company established under the laws of the PRC. By virtue of
the SFO, CEC, SDIC High-Tech Investment Co., Ltd and The
State Development and Investment Corporation are deemed
to be interested in the 393,680,000 shares of the Company
held by China Huada.

() CEC holds 100% interest in CEC (BVI) and is deemed to
be interested in the shares of the Company held by CEC
(BVI). The directors regard CEC, a state-owned enterprise
established under the laws of the PRC, as being the ultimate
holding company of the Group.

All the interests disclosed above represent long position in
the shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2012, the
Company had not been notified of any other interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares and the
Company had not redeemed any of its shares during the
year ended 31 December 2012.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the aggregate
sales attributable to the five largest customers of the
Group accounted for 61.2% of the Group's sales for the
year and sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
accounted for 16.1% of the Group's sales for the year.
For the year ended 31 December 2012, the aggregate
purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers of the
Group accounted for 84.7% of the Group’s purchases for
the year and purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier accounted for 56.3% of the Group's purchases for
the year.

CEC Group is not a beneficial owner of any of the five
largest customers and is the beneficial owner of two of the
five largest suppliers of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, their
respective associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) had any interest in any of
the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company, at the date of this report, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total issued share capital are held by the public
and fulfills the requirement under the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee has reviewed the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2012.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Rui Xiaowu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 February 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINA ELECTRONICS CORPORATION HOLDINGS
COMPANY LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in
Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 40 to 98, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31
December 2012, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT RS
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(RAESHETMA LR ARELBELEZH

R a])

TZEEMEBEZINENRFL0EE %987@243%'-&
FTEEZERERAR([ERAF)RENBA
(18 FE;’%IJ)Z@ B RS R K - 1&%? Bﬁ%ﬁp&
RBEENR2012F12A31B 2GRN AREEAR
%éﬁiﬁiaiatirz,%?éu& SR ZEeEEmK
W GEARREHRNGEBEERER URE
AEFBRMERHE MM FREER -

EERRAVBBRRAREZEE

E”TZ%%Z%%E%%% AR AgRMAZ
FRAMBHREENRIRBES (REHEH) K
ﬁﬁiﬁ%iAﬁﬁﬁﬁuéﬁ MK AF R
EEMAFHRR MEEERRRESS MK
BRAVEBHABRE I AERAT BRI
FE A BREF 288 AR 1T B B BB K $H AR BR

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT S

=
pwc

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 December 2012, and of the
Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 February 2013

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Income Statement

malsEk
Year ended 31 December
BZ12B31BLLEE
2012 2011
20124 20114
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Jiora TET FATT
Revenue WA 5 1,155,632 995,111
Cost of sales HERKA 7 (703,904) (665,832)
Gross profit EAX 451,728 329,279
Other gains — net Hib Uk 28— F 58 6 28,679 31,244
Selling and marketing costs HE RS H#EEK A 7 (57.310) (41,289)
Administrative expenses THAX 7 (200,768) (189,287)
Operating profit LR A 222,329 129,947
Finance income — net mE WA —F 58 10 3,194 1,282
Profit before taxation KR %R Al % R 225,523 131,229
Taxation 1B 11 (27,939) (16,570)
Profit for the year A FEEF 197,584 114,659
Attributable to owners of EERAQAEZEEE
the Company 12 197,584 114,659
Dividends BE 13 - =
HK cents HK cents
R 1T el
Earnings per share BRER 14
— Basic — 2K 11.68 6.78
— Diluted —#E 11.68 6.78

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2012



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEEWER
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MBLFE
2012 2011
20125 201148
HK$ 000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Profit for the year REERF 197,584 114,659
Other comprehensive income for AEEHMEEKE:
the year:
Exchange differences on translation of BREBIINEBERE R
financial statements of foreign operations EHZER 639 20,133
Total comprehensive income for AFEETHEHWSARHE
the year 198,223 134,792
Attributable to owners of BERARAEREEE
the Company 198,223 134,792

HEEFEEZERARAR 2012FF8H
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

31 December 31 December
2012 2011
20125128318 2011F12H31H
Note HKS$'000 HK$'000
Jiora TET FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M RE R R 15 21,210 16,988
Intangible assets EILEE 16 3,671 4,281
Deferred tax assets RAETIIEE & 11 41,950 28,560
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE 18 2,467 2,467
69,298 52,296
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 19 308,185 268,457
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H i fE W FRIB 20 494,604 404,672
Cash and cash equivalents B NIREeEEBY 21 476,619 329,453
1,279,408 1,002,582
Total assets BEEH#AT 1,348,706 1,054,878
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ERREE
Equity attributable ARRERTEE
to owners of the Company R
Issued equity BT 22 889,171 889,171
Other reserves b fE G 23 (320,599) (321,238)
Retained earnings R A 237,230 39,646
Total equity e EE 805,802 607,579
Liabilities =L
Current liabilities HREEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & H M e IR 24 541,671 422,629
Short term bank loans HHISRITE R 25 1,233 24,670
Total liabilities BEHE 542,904 447,299
Total equity and liabilities ERREERE 1,348,706 1,054,878
Net current assets REEEEE 736,504 555,283
Total assets less current liabilities A& ERREAG 805,802 607,579

The financial statements on pages 40 to 98 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25
February 2013 and are signed on its behalf by:

Rui Xiaowu B9 B &

Director &%

HNBIOEEFISE M B MARKLEETEMN2013
F2A2ABERIXERZE AR TIATREKRE
=

Xie Qinghua HE &
Director &%

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2012



Balance Sheet

31 December

EERER

31 December

2012 2011
2012%12A318H 20114F12H31H
Note HKS$'000 HK$'000
Kt FET FEIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M WE R 15 1,031 591
Investments in subsidiaries B AR E 17 658,429 658,429
659,460 659,020
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H i fE W kI8 20 3,278 739
Cash and cash equivalents B MIREEEBY 21 78,737 94,779
82,015 95,518
Total assets EEHATE 741,475 754,538
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ExRkaE
Equity xS
Share capital N 22 889,171 889,171
Other reserves H s 23 61,672 61,672
Accumulated losses 25TE18 (214,534) (200,770)
Total equity B 736,309 750,073
Liabilities =
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & H M e IR 24 5,166 4,465
Total equity and liabilities Bk aEEEE 741,475 754,538
Net current assets mEBEEEE 76,849 91,053
Total assets less current liabilities A& ERREAG 736,309 750,073

The financial statements on pages 40 to 98 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
25 February 2013 and are signed on its behalf by:

HNFA0EEFISHE 2 B MRELEFEN2013
F2AAHENRTETE WA FMIIALTRERE

=

Rui Xiaowu & B &
Director &%

Xie Qinghua #f & &
Director &%

PEEFEERRAERAF 20125 F 8§ 43
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REREZSER

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREREEEREML

Retained

earnings/
Issued Other (accumulated Total
equity reserves losses) equity

HREBRF,
BRTHER HAh{# & (R3tER) RSB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FAT FAT
At 1 January 2011 M2011E181H 889,171 (341,371) (75,013) 472,787
Total comprehensive income e Gt k] = 20,133 114,659 134,792
At 31 December 2011 R2011512H31H 889,171 (321,238) 39,646 607,579
At 1 January 2012 M2012F1H18 889,171 (321,238) 39,646 607,579
Total comprehensive income ZEWRERE - 639 197,584 198,223
At 31 December 2012 72012512H31H 889,171 (320,599) 237,230 805,802

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2012



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GERETRER

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31MBLFE
2012 2011
201245 20114F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
HtaE FHET FHET

Cash flows from operating REFERZ

activities HERE
Cash generated from operations KEELE RS 26 219,168 97,107
Interest paid XA B (546) (1,646)
Income tax paid AN (28,530) (24,968)
Net cash generated from KETHEEL

operating activities e FEE 190,092 70,493
Cash flows from investing REZHZRERE

activities
Interest received WeEFI 2 3,740 2,928
Purchase of property, plant and ﬁ%,\%% T 55 K 5% R AN

equipment and intangible assets EILEE (20,655) (15,016)
Proceeds on disposal of property, ﬁ’%%¥ B &

plant and equipment RIS IR 14 6,359
Proceed on disposal of an associate i &8 & A &l P13 218 - 1,323
Net cash used in investing activities & B EEFTA 2R /F5E (16,901) (4,406)
Cash flows from financing METBZRERE

activities
Proceeds from bank loans RITERFERIAE 1,233 24,670
Repayment of bank loans borrowed La%aﬁﬁﬂf%m (24,670) (24,670)
Net cash used in BEEBAZ

financing activities HEF5 (23,437) =
Net increase in cash REeERREEEY

and cash equivalents i‘”ﬂﬂ?%ﬁ 149,754 66,087
Effect of foreign exchange P& & g8 >

rate changes ?J% (2,588) (3,919)
Cash and cash equivalents at FOzRER

beginning of the year REEEY 329,453 267,285
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZEER

end of the year BEEEY 21 476,619 329,453

HEEFEEERERARF

2012FFR 45



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318 It FE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited
(the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and continued in Bermuda with limited liability. The
Company has its shares listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The address of the Company's
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The ultimate holding company of the Company is
China Electronics Corporation Limited (“CEC"), which is
established in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) are the design, research and
development and sale of integrated circuits.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
(a) Compliance with HKFRS and Listing Rules

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”). The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

1. —RER

FHREFEEIERERAT ([AAF]) A KR
FEMHESFMKY  WRERELBELENBRE
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™ o AR B M RE i = R 4k & Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda °

ARAZEREEBRRABSTHETFEEEXEE
BERAR (HMEEFEE]) (—KRPEARK
B (THRE )KL 2 E2) °

ARABIMEMBAR (GEIAEE])NEER
BREEKRERZ R HEMHEE-

2. EREHHEHE

RENGAMBRRARAN T Z S BRET
M -BRBEBPEN HEFBRR—BERERAR
MBEEBRIFE-

2.1 RBEEXE
@ FEBEHEIHEER R A

REMBBRRDBEEEGHAMAERM2ER
MBHREEN (TFBMBRELER]) MER - %
ERAVBRRNBTEERARHMERRAR]
Ar LA (T ETRA]) @R mER
ERBMBHRREMELRAEREREL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
(a) Compliance with HKFRS and Listing Rules (Cont'd)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
had adopted the following amendments to Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS"”) and HKFRS that are
relevant to its operations and effective for the accounting
period beginning on 1 January 2012:

HKAS 12 Income Taxes
(amendment)

HKFRS 7 Disclosure — Transfer of Financial
(amendment) Assets

The adoption of such amendments to standards did not
have any significant effect on results or financial position of
the Group for the current year.

2. BEARETHRBEH)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318 L FE

2. EARESTTHEHE (#)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations (Cont'd)

At the date of authorisation of this consolidated financial
statements, the following new or revised HKAS and HKFRS,
and amendments to HKAS and HKFRS have been issued
but are not yet effective:

HKAS 1
(amendment)
HKAS 19
(revised 2011)
HKAS 27
(revised 2011)
HKAS 28
(revised 2011)
HKAS 32
(amendment)

HKFRS 7
(amendment)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10, HKFRS
11 and HKFRS 12
(amendment)

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

Presentation of Financial Statements
(effective from 1 January 2013)
Employee Benefits
(effective from 1 January 2013)
Separate Financial Statements
(effective from 1 January 2013)
Associates and Joint Ventures
(effective from 1 January 2013)
Financial Instruments: Presentation
— Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities (effective from
1 January 2014)
Financial Instruments: Disclosures
— Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities (effective from
1 January 2013)
Financial Instruments (effective
from 1 January 2015)
Transition Guidance
(effective from 1 January 2013)

Consolidated Financial Statements
(effective from 1 January 2013)

Joint Arrangements (effective from
1 January 2013)

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities (effective from 1 January
2013)

Fair Value Measurement (effective
from 1 January 2013)

The Group did not early adopt any of these new or revised
HKAS and HKFRS, and amendments to HKAS and HKFRS.
Management is currently assessing the financial impact
of these revisions to the Group’s financial position and

performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012412A318H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation
(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies, generally accompanying
a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.
The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

The subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
will be included in the consolidated financial statements
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal (except for acquisition of subsidiaries
under common control which are accounted for using the
principles of merger accounting), as appropriate.

Apart from the application of merger accounting on
those common control combination as disclosed in Note
2.2(c) below, the purchase method of accounting is used
to account for business combination by the Group. The
consideration transferred for an acquisition is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related transaction costs are expensed as
incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets. The excess
of the aggregate of consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the aggregate
of consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition
date fair value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree is less than the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(a) Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary in the
consolidated financial statements to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

The investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses in the Company’s balance
sheet (Note 2.7). Cost is adjusted to reflect changes
in consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company in the Company’s income statement to the
extent of dividend received and receivable.

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
as transactions with shareholders of the Group. For
purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference
between the fair value of consideration paid and the
Group's share of the carrying value of net assets acquired
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

(c) Common control combination

Merger accounting is used to account for the acquisition of
subsidiaries under common control by the Group.

Under merger accounting, the consolidated financial
statements incorporate the financial statements of the
combining entities or businesses in which the common
control combination occurs as if they had been combined
from the date when the combining entities or businesses
first came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are combined using the existing book values from the
controlling parties’ perspective. No amount is recognised in
consideration for goodwill or excess of acquirers’ interest in
the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(c) Common control combination (Cont'd)

The consolidated income statement includes the results
of each of the combining entities or businesses from
the earliest date presented or since the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under common
control, whichever is shorter and regardless of the effective
date of the common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses
had been combined at the previous balance sheet dates or
when they first came under common control, whichever is
shorter.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by
those entities. All inter-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between combining
entities or businesses are eliminated on consolidation.

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration
fees, costs of furnishing information to shareholders, costs
or losses incurred in combining operations of the previously
separate businesses, etc., incurred in relation to the
common control combination is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

The difference between the share capital of entities
combined and the fair value of consideration paid has been
recorded in the merger reserve in consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the board of directors that makes strategic
decisions.

2.4  Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Company’s functional and the Group's presentation
currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the
consolidated income statement within “finance income/
(costs) — net”. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the consolidated income statement within
"other gains/(losses) — net”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)
(c) Group companies

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated into
the presentation currency as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are
taken to other comprehensive income.

2. BEARETHRBEH)

24 SNEBRE (F)

©  FEARA]

ERGAMBHRERMS NEEREIFREE
THM%%EI*WWE(*¢EﬁﬁEME%
JIRBEBKRER)EAMBBIOREIAT

ERERIIRER

- tPDEM§FEﬁ%WM§FﬂEﬁ&
ZEERBERAHNKRMERKRE

— BHRERANKRAME R FHE XK
B (RIFEHERIIRRZH BHEEXRY
RAFENSENE AEXBEERRS
BHNERRE) &

- FARLELAMNELEZBEEHMEE NS
FHER

EREFAKRAR RESIEBNFREME
HEEVEE N E RS A M 2 U

FRETFEREERERAR 2012F F3]

53



54

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their costs over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements 5 years (or over the lease

term, whichever is

shorter)
— Plant and machinery 5-10 years
— Motor vehicles 5-10 years
— Furniture and fixtures 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals or retirement are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognised within “other gains/(losses) —
net” in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.6 Intangible assets
Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives of one to three years.

2.7 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example
goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
balance sheet date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.8 Financial assets
2.8.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets into two categories:
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 1 year after the balance
sheet date, which are classified as non-current assets.
The Group's loans and receivables comprise “trade and
other receivables” and “cash and cash equivalents” in the
balance sheet (Notes 2.10 and 2.11).

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
financial assets that are either designated in this category
or not classified in the other category. They are included in
non-current assets unless management intends to dispose
of the investment within 1 year of the balance sheet date,
which are classified as current assets.

2.8.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sale of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for
all financial assets. However, for available-for-sale financial
assets that do not have a quoted market price, the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant and the
possibilities of the various estimates cannot be reasonably
assessed, is stated at cost. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried
at fair value. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.8 Financial assets (Cont'd)
2.8.2 Recognition and measurement (Cont'd)

Changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
are recognised in other comprehensive income until the
financial asset is disposed of or determined to be impaired.
Dividend income from available-for-sale financial assets is
recognised in the consolidated income statement as part
of “other gains/(losses) — net” when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established. Interest on available-for-
sale securities calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in the consolidated income statement as part
of “other gains/(losses) — net”.

When available-for-sale securities are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are
included in the income statement.

2.8.3 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. All impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement. In
the case of available-for-sale financial assets, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost is
considered as an indicator that the financial asset is
impaired. If any such evidence exists, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in income statement
and in equity, is recognised in the income statement.
Impairment losses recognised on available-for-sale equity
instruments are not subsequently reversed. For loans and
receivables, impairment loss is reversed to the extent that
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised. Impairment testing of trade and other
receivables is described in Note 2.10.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.9 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted-
average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises design costs, raw materials, direct
labour, manufacturing cost of subcontractors, other direct
costs and related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.10 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in 1 year or less, they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets. Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulty of the debtor, probability that
the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation,
and default or delinquency in payments are considered
indicators that the receivable is impaired. The amount of
the provision is the difference between the receivable’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the receivable is reduced
through the use of an allowance account, and the amount
of the provision is recognised in the income statement
within “administrative expenses”. When the receivable
is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against “administrative
expenses” in the income statement.

2. EASTHTHEHE#)

29 #E

TFEIR AN B A 23R F B M & B BUKE 51 Bk © A
ZRER P DN T A B TE © BLRK dn S FE B fm KO A AR
BRERETRA BRI ERST HEEHEEN
A HEMEZRAMNEENEELTERX (KIE
EFLER) FERATBREEENE - ] &
RFERERFXRBEETNRTEERE R
EARNAEBHER

210 EF R EHEMEWRIE

BHRBFAREREXHERETHARHEENL
MIBATT K ET PRI INE 5 K HE W
RENREERE —FHAR BB BEARD
BE QAN BRIERDEE-BEHRHEMER
RIBBVIE A ERR  HRABRN AR E
HAAHBRRERGTE EATBEREAN
5 B BOX 12 R MG TR RO R A 1R 5K [E] BT B S00R
AR E 5 R HE BN RIBERERERE &
BALBREBAMEEE B AR EHESETT
MBEMR ARBREEHN GRA R ZE
WHIBRBERHRENTR BEESBARYIRZ
EHERRRERMNEIFRMATARRAERE
BE 2 Z8 - BYFIRN REEE BER R ER
FHIR - ™A e BB R R am R A [17IK
B Sc | AR ER o AR PR MR R IR R M [ s - 2 0 R R
IR ERP B T AMEHE - 2 7 2 #SH 5 & WK
TRAE R W] - O 2 B AR M S R A [ 176
X | REER

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2012



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks and other financial institutions and
other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of 3 months or less.

2.12 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or share options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.13 Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair values
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions. Grant relating to an asset is included in non-
current liabilities, which is credited to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the expected
useful life of the related asset. Grant relating to an
expense item is deferred and recognised as income in the
consolidated income statement over the period necessary
to match with the cost that it is intended to compensate.

2.14 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within 1 year or less. If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are
initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.15 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 1 year after the balance sheet date.

2.16 Current and deferred taxation

The taxation expense comprises current and deferred
taxation. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred taxation is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, the
deferred taxation is not recognised for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred taxation is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax
liability is settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.16 Current and deferred taxation (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

2.17 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow of resources will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow of resources with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.18 Employee benefits
(@) Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
("MPF Scheme”) for the eligible employees in Hong Kong.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme, the
assets of which are held in separate trustee — administered
funds. The Group’s contributions to MPF Scheme are set at
5% of employees’ salaries and are expensed as incurred.

The Group's subsidiaries operating in the PRC have to make
contribution to staff retirement scheme managed by local
government authorities in accordance with the relevant
rules and regulations. Contributions to these schemes are
charged to the income statement as and when incurred.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions.

(b)  Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

(c) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonuses is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation for payment of bonus as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected to
be settled within 1 year and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318H It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.18 Employee benefits (Cont'd)

(d) Share-based compensation

The fair value of the employee services received is
determined by reference to the fair value of the share
options granted at the grant date, excluding the impact
of any non-market service and performance vesting
conditions, and is recognised as an expense with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).
Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of share options that are expected to
vest. The total amount expensed is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At balance
sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the number
of share options that are expected to vest. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in
the consolidated income statement, and a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium. When the share options are cancelled after the
vesting period or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to retained earnings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.19 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not provided for as a provision but
is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When
a change in the probability of an outflow of resources
occurs so that the outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.

2.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods, net of value-
added tax, returns, rebates and discounts. Revenue is
recognised when the goods are delivered to customers, the
customers have accepted the goods or the product quality
inspection time period has lapsed and collectability of the
related receivables is reasonably assured.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis,
taking into account the principal amounts outstanding and
the interest rates applicable.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.21 Operating leases

Leases in which substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318H It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.22 Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development
costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing
of identifiable and unique software products are recognised
as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

- it is technically feasible to complete the software
product so that it will be available for use;

- management intends to complete the software
product and use or sell it;

- there is an ability to use or sell the software product;

- it can be demonstrated how the software product
will generate probable future economic benefits;

- adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development of the software product
are available; and

- the expenditure attributable to the software product
during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the
software product cost includes employee costs for software
development and an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads. Costs associated with maintaining computer
software programmes are recognised as an expense as
incurred.

Other development costs that do not meet these criteria
are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development
costs previously recognised as an expense are not
recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Computer software development costs recognised as
assets are amortised using straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives, which does not exceed three years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.23 Dividend distribution

Final dividends proposed by the board of directors are
classified as a separate allocation of retained earnings
within the equity section of the balance sheet, until they
have been approved by the shareholders in an annual
general meeting. When these dividends have been
declared by the board of directors and approved by the
shareholders, they are recognised as a liability.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

(a)  Foreign exchange risk

The foreign exchange risks of the Group occurred due
to the fact that the Group had some business activities
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group's business
activities are primarily exposed to foreign exchange risk
in respect of Renminbi (“RMB"”) against Hong Kong
dollar (“HK dollar”) and United States dollar (“US dollar”)
against RMB. Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities that are denominated in a currency that is not the
entity’s functional currency. In additions, the conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government.

To manage its foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities, the Group uses forward contracts, when
appropriate, to hedge anticipated cash flows in major
foreign currencies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318H It FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(@) Foreign exchange risk (Cont'd)

If RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5% against HK
dollar with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2012 would have been
HK$109,000 higher/lower (2011: HK$545,000 higher/
lower), mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains or
losses on translation of RMB denominated cash and cash
equivalents.

If US dollar had strengthened/weakened by 5% against
RMB with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2012 would have been
HK$3,947,000 higher/lower (2011: HK$3,931,000 higher/
lower), mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains or
losses on translation of US dollar denominated cash and
cash equivalents.

As less than 10% of the Group’s foreign currency
transactions are denominated in other foreign currencies,
the directors are of the view that foreign exchange risk
in relation to transactions denominated in other foreign
currencies is low. Therefore, no sensitivity analysis for these
currencies is presented.

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Other than deposits held in banks and other financial
institutions, the Group does not have significant interest-
bearing assets. The average rate on deposits held in banks
and other financial institutions at 31 December 2012
was approximately 1.42% (2011: 1.18%) per annum.
Any change in the interest rate from time to time is not
considered to have significant impact to the Group’s
performance.

The Group’s interest rate risk which affects its results and
operating cash flows mainly arises from bank borrowings.
The bank borrowings were at fixed rates and expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. As all the Group’s
bank borrowings were short term loans and any change in
the interest rate from time to time is not considered to have
significant impact to the Group’s performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318 It FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(c) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and trade
and other receivables. The maximum exposure to credit risk
at the balance sheet date is their carrying value. The Group
has policies and procedures in place to ensure they are
made to counterparties with acceptable credit quality.

All the Group’s deposits with bank and other financial
institution are placed in high quality financial institutions
without significant exposure to credit risk.

For trade and other receivables, the credit quality of the
counterparties is assessed by taking into account their
financial position, credit history and other factors. Individual
credit limits are set based on the assessment of the
credit quality. Given the constant repayment history, the
directors are of the opinion that the risk of default by these
counterparties is not significant. Further disclosure on credit
risk are set out in Note 20.

(d) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management, including maintaining
sufficient working capital, the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed borrowing
facilities and the ability to close out market positions is
adopted. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
businesses, the Group maintains flexibility in funding by
ensuring sufficient committed borrowing facilities are
available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318H It FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(d) Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The table below analyses the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities by maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are based on the contractual undiscounted cash flows
of the financial liabilities.
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3.2 Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
includes bank borrowings, and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, which comprises issued equity
and reserves.

The Group monitors capital risk using a gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as equity, as shown in
the consolidated balance sheets, plus net debt.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318 It FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

3.2 Capital risk management (Cont'd)

The Group's strategy is to maintain an operation with
minimal capital risk. As at 31 December 2012, the Group's
cash and cash equivalents exceeded its borrowings by
HK$475,386,000 (2011: HK$304,783,000). The directors
are of the opinion that the Group’s capital risk is low.

3.3  Fair value estimation

Financial instruments measured at fair value are grouped
into Levels 1 to 3, based on the degree to which the fair
value is observable, as follows:

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group had no
financial instrument measured at fair value and hence
did not have any Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3 financial
instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318H It FE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

4.1 Income tax and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income tax in different jurisdictions.
Estimation and judgment is required in determining
the amount of the provision for income tax. There are
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recognised,
such differences will impact on the income tax and
deferred taxation provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

In accordance with the enterprise income tax laws in
the PRC, a 10% withholding tax will be levied on the
dividend declared by the companies established in the
PRC to their foreign investors starting from 1 January
2008. No deferred tax liability has been provided by the
Group for the earnings of approximately HK$482,000,000
(2011: HK$268,000,000) expected to be retained by the
subsidiaries in the PRC and not to be remitted out of the
PRC in the foreseeable future.

4.2 Impairment of trade receivables

Management reviews its trade receivables for objective
evidence of impairment. Significant financial difficulty of
the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered as objective evidence that a
receivable is impaired. In determining this, management
makes judgments as to whether there is observable
data indicating that there has been a significant change
in the payment ability of the debtor, or whether there
have been significant changes with adverse effect on the
market and economic environment in which the debtor
operates. Where there is objective evidence of impairment,
management makes judgments as to whether an
impairment loss should be recognised as an expense.

Provision for impairment of trade receivables of the
Group at 31 December 2012 is HK$4,335,000 (2011:
HK$19,295,000).

4. FEGEAETRAE

4.1 FBHRELEBIE

AEBEBR TR BEERBAFER - REE
SHREREG BN FELATRAE KRBT
EBBRPFERI NAEHHUBEERRZ
MBEE MExFERIEEBMBERBING
MNER 2B RSEZEENEBEERYEHZHME
BMEEHARBELRE -

BIBFRBIMEEMSHE B2008F1 518 8 %
FERBEK R R REGINGEE DRI B
W10% B TEFNFR o 2N 5= B 30 42 i 7B HA /R R B Y /B
NAREBTERAI AR KK DK A B
#43482,000,000% 7t (20114 : 268,000,000/ 7T )
B A B E R IEEE -

42 EFERWFERE

EEEENEEZRWFAEESRERERR
BEBALIRERNWEREE  EH AR BERESHE
THBER  ARBRIBHANFK DR SEE
WHRIBREEBREEE CECRER E2ES
HEHESABERENBRNEBANERENEE
RES AETHEBARGAENT IS REHE
REBRINEZENEANED A FTBRER
B EEEHEBORERERERSM -

AREBR2012F12A31B 0 E 5 E W 3K 1B R/ E
B 1 54,335,000 7T (20114 : 19,295,0005
JC) °©
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e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318 It FE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

(a) Revenue

5. WARZHESR

(@) WA

Year ended 31 December

BZ12B31BLEE
2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Integrated circuits products EXEKEE SR 1,155,632 995,111

(b) Operating segments

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the directors (the
chief operating decision maker) that are used to assess
performance and allocate resources.

The directors consider that the Group’s operations are
operated and managed as a single segment, accordingly no
operating segments information is presented.

In terms of geographical location, nearly 100% of the
Group's revenue is attributable to the market in the PRC
and over 90% of the Group’s non-current assets are
located in the PRC.

Total non-current assets by location are as follows:

(b) EEZI

EEECRBES (TE2E LJ&ﬁ%)E%BﬁVE%
ERRAEIEERBORE EELEDH -

EER t%‘il%%%z%ﬁ%ﬂ —DEMEENE

B-RERELESAER -
BB SN E  AEBEZI100% 2 WAKER

FETESEBEI0% ZIFRDEEMNTE -

BiE DB ZIEREEELLTENT

31 December 31 December

2012 2011

20125128318 2011F12H31H

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FEx THIT

PRC H 26,112 22,908

Hong Kong BB 1,236 828

27,348 23,736

Deferred tax assets RIEFIAE = 41,950 28,560
Total non-current assets per R EERBRZ

consolidated balance sheet ERENE EAREE 69,298 52,296

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2012
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e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318H It FE

6. OTHER GAINS - NET

6. Hitblzs—FH

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Government grants B 4 B 30,737 28,772
Share of loss of an associate DEEE R - (253)
Gain on disposal of an associate BB QR - 1,053

Gain on disposal of property, HEME HWE R

plant and equipment FE 14 619
Exchange (losses)/gains BN (Ei8), M (717) 585
Others HAfb (1,355) 468
28,679 31,244

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group disposed
of its entire interest in an associate to an independent third
party at a consideration of RMB1,100,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,323,000) and recognised gain on
disposal of HK$1,053,000.

7. EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing
costs and administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

HZE201MF12A31MBLEFE AEBNUARK
1,100,0007T (A& A 41,323,000 7T ) 2 ¥HE
HEEHBENRE2PEALETFBYE =AY
R L E 51,053,000 7T °

7. BREEIESZER

SIE SR & AR A ~ $HE KT 35 HE B A AR R TT B R X2
ZEBERAMMT:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLFE
2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
Depreciation and amortisation expenses TEREHEER
(Notes 15 and 16) (K1at15k16) 16,982 14,363
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) EEBEAEX (K/aEs8) 126,810 101,462
Changes in inventories of finished goods Sk on RS
and work in progress FEEE) (60,729) (16,165)
Raw materials and consumables used Fir B TR A4 3 B2 E 7 731,534 652,642
Research and development costs i 78 K2 A 3R AR 163,355 138,969
(Reversal of)/Impairment provision for B 5 W ERIE 2R E
trade receivables (Note 20) (BeEl), B (Hfaz20) (14,905) 14,071
Write-down of inventories to WoRTF & £ r] B30 FE
net realisable value (Note 79) (K1a£19) 21,001 8,345
Operating lease expenses on property YEZCERERT 11,289 7,572
Auditor’s remuneration =% SR B & 1,909 1,585

HEEFEEZERARAR 2012FF8H
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e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318 It FE

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 8. EER®AMAX
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE
2012 2011
201245 20114
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TATT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMEEYRET 116,441 92,812
Contributions to retirement schemes RIRETEIHEFR
(Notes (a) and (b)) (HiaE@) b)) 10,369 8,650
126,810 101,462
(@)  The Group operates a MPF Scheme for the eligible (@) AEEREALCEREBRLBESA

employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s contributions
to MPF Scheme are set at 5% of employees’ salaries
and are expensed as incurred.

(b) The Company's PRC subsidiaries participate in (b)

defined contribution retirement scheme based
on laws and regulations in the PRC. The local
government authority of the PRC is responsible for
the pension liabilities to these retired employees in
the PRC. These PRC subsidiaries made contributions
to retirement schemes in the PRC and are expensed
as incurred.

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318H It FE

9. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31
December 2012 is set out below:

9. EEREEM=

(a) E=M=

BEERNEHZE2012F12A31BIEFE 2B &5
R

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind contributions Discretionary
Name of director Fees #< 2HR ENREFE bonus Total
EEpgE we BENER it BERA a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT THERT THERT THET THERT
Rui Xiaowu PR - - - - -
Zhao Guiwu FEEE - - - - -
Xie Qinghua* Bl - 108 28 - 136
Fan Qingwu** B+ - 346 76 640 1,062
Liu Jinping 2|&F 200 - - - 200
Chan Kay Cheung PRI S 200 - - - 200
Qiu Hongsheng*** [k A % 33 - - - 33
Wong Po Yan**** EARR**** 167 - - - 167
Yin Yongli Fox A 200 - - - 200
800 454 104 640 1,998
3 Appointed on 24 August 2012. & MR2012F8 A24HEZ £ -

*x Resigned on 24 August 2012.
xok Appointed on 1 November 2012.
***%  Resigned on 1 November 2012.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors of the Company as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the directors of the Company had waived
any emoluments during the year.

kS R20124F8 A24H BHT -
**x  FMV012F11 1B ERE-
*kxx JAI0124E11 B1HBHE -

FRAKBEYERAARRREENERAMESES

MBARSEHMBARZ BB HESREZHE-
FAMEBEARREZTRETMAME -

HEEFEEZERARAR 2012FF8H
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e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 & £2012F 128318 L F &

9. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd)

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31
December 2011 is set out below:

9. EERKEEME (&)

(a) E=M= (&)

BEERNEHZE2011F12A31BIEFE 2B &5
R

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind  contributions  Discretionary
Name of director Fees & EUKk RIKSFE bonus Total
EEHA ik EWET HR IBIEAL &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FAT FAT FHAT FHT
Rui Xiaowu* PR 244 = = = 244
Xiong Qunli** RRRE 7 ** 394 = = = 394
Zhao Guiwu HEEE 200 = = = 200
Fan Qingwu SEIE A - 520 88 480 1,088
Liu Jinping 2EF 200 = = = 200
Chan Kay Cheung PRI S 200 - - - 200
Wong Po Yan F=IRR 200 - - - 200
Yin Yongli F oK F 200 - - - 200
1,638 520 88 480 2,726
3 Appointed on 5 August 2011. 3 M201MG8ASHEZ(F -

*x Resigned on 5 August 2011.
(b) Five highest paid individuals
The emoluments payable to the five individuals whose

paid were the highest in the Group during the year are as
follows:

kS M20114F8 ASH BT -
(b) EEBREHFMAZL
FARNTASEEFHEE 2 AR AT 20
N

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLLEE
2012 2011
201245 20114
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FETT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R AEYES 3,549 3,413
Bonuses EAL 8,195 4,145
Contributions to retirement schemes RIRETEIH R 237 228
11,981 7,786
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e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 & £2012F 128318 L F &

9. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Cont'd)

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
included one (2011: one) director of the Company and

their emoluments were within the following bands:

9. EERKEEME (&)

(b) HEEREHMAL (E)

AEZEeHFMALTRERDRN—H (20114F
—Z)BEEMPEEZME N FUTEE

Number of individuals

A
2012 2011
20125 20114
HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,0015# 7 — 1,500,0003% 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,0015# 7T — 2,000,0003% 7T - 4
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,0015% 7T —2,500,0005%8 T 1 -
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,0015% 7£ — 3,000,000 7T 2 -
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T — 3,500,000/ 7T 1 -
5 5

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

office.

10. FINANCE INCOME - NET

FAAEEW TR T LKA LSNER
P < 1 7= b0 B8 AN 52 B =k 0 B2 By 2 2R B sk 1R R B AT
ZF{E

10. @EWA—FEE

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLLEE

2012 2011

201245 201148

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FET FATT

Interest income on short term deposits HHEFERF S U A 3,740 2,928
Interest on bank loans IRITE A B (546) (1,646)
3,194 1,282

HEEFEEZERARAR 2012FF8H
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e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318 It FE

11. TAXATION 11. HIE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2012 2011
20125 20114
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TATT
Current taxation AREFERHIE
— PRC enterprise income tax —HRE B EMER 41,288 22,955
Deferred taxation R FE TR IR (13,349) (6,385)
27,939 16,570

(a)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax had been
made as the Group did not generate any assessable
profit in Hong Kong during the year (2011: nil).

In accordance with the enterprise income tax laws
in the PRC, the applicable statutory tax rate of
CEC Huada Electronic Design Co., Ltd (“Huada
Electronics”) is 25% from 1 January 2008. However,
Huada Electronics qualified as a “High/New
Technology Enterprise” and thus was granted a
15% preferential tax rate from 1 January 2008 to
31 December 2013.

Reconciliation between the taxation expense on the
Group's profit before taxation and the theoretical
taxation that would arise using the respective
applicable statutory tax rates are as follows:

(@) HRAEBRAFEAREETEELT
o] J& 23 %5 v A BT £ 5h B B B SR E W
B (20114 &) o

(b) WREFPRCEMSHE EIRPEERETF
BRETEREEAR ([FEXEF]) B2008F
TA1BRZEREEMEHB25% A -
HREAETHETCA [RHEELE]
& Itk B20084E1 A1 8 #£ £2013412 A31
HEAEFEXI5%ZEREHRK-

(0 AKERVADNGNZHIARNS2IZE 8 #E
ROREREATE 2 EMBIACHRIT

Year ended 31 December

B Z12A31BLLFEE
2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before taxation BR 7 BT g A 225,523 131,229
Calculated at respective applicable BREEEBEERR
statutory tax rates STE 2 FHIE 57,739 33,542
Effect of tax concession WIBRE 2 (24,179) (14,412)
Research and development 5t & F &
costs additional deductions B AR SNBR (8,701) (5,567)
Expenses not deductible for Lk
taxation purposes X 372 520
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses  {# F & Bl R #E R O B TH B 18 - (17)
Tax losses for which no deferred tax WEBERELERIBEEZ
asset was recognised (Note (d) TRIAEE (Hit[d)) 2,708 2,504
Taxation expense IR 27,939 16,570

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2012



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318H It FE

11. TAXATION (Cont'd) 1. HIE (&)
(d) Deferred taxation (d) EEFIE
The movements in the deferred tax assets during the year FANELEHBEEEZZEHWNT -
are as follows:
Salary and Deferred
Impairment welfare government
of payables grants
inventories BRI i Others Total
BERAE 0] BUF®E Hith )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEL FEL FHL FHT
At 1 January 2011 M20115E181H8 1,504 6,755 11,201 1,539 20,999
Exchange differences PEH =5 101 343 560 172 1,176
Credited to the income statement &% Wz & 1,252 409 211 4,513 6,385
At 31 December 2011 712011%12831H 2,857 7,507 11,972 6,224 28,560
At 1 January 2012 ®2012F181R 2,857 7,507 11,972 6,224 28,560
Exchange differences EHER 10 5 24 2 41
Credited to the income statement &% Y25 & 3,150 1,649 7,727 823 13,349
At 31 December 2012 120125612831H 6,017 9,161 19,723 7,049 41,950
The amounts shown in the consolidated balance sheet REEEERERITZEEBREUTIES :
include the following:
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
20125%12831H 2011412A831H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Deferred tax assets to be AR 121E A & Uk B 2
recovered after more than 12 months TRIEFIIE & B 737 2,939
Deferred tax assets to be B 1218 A Ak E 2
recovered within 12 months EIEFTAE = 41,213 25,621
41,950 28,560
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carrying- ERERBEEI LA 2 AR IRMRER - 1
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related INERI B BRRC ER & FEREEARIEF
tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. SRR RAFR REBEIWRH AT BB A FER
During the year, the Group did not recognise deferred 2R JE ER B K| 2 E51816,263,00008 7T (20114 -
tax assets of HK$2,708,000 (2011: HK$2,504,000) in 12,992,000/ 7T ) #E SRR FE 7 12 & E 2,708,000/
respect of losses amounting to HK$16,263,000 (2011: 7t (20114 : 2,504,000/ 7T, ) ©

HK$12,992,000) that can be carried forward against future

taxable income.

HEEFEEZERARAR 2012FF8H
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318 It FE

12. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2012 included a
loss of HK$13,764,000 (2011: HK$10,808,000) which has
been dealt with in the separate financial statements of the
Company.

13. DIVIDENDS

The board of directors does not recommend the payment
of final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012
(2011: nil).

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
is based on the following data:

12. XARERFFEREER

HE202F12A31BLFE ARG ESIFEE
JE(R4R AT - A813,764,0008 7T (20114
10,808,000/ 7T) W BB E R AR &) Z 18 3 B 75
WMRANEE -

13. RE

BESTERRMNEE2012F128318LFE 2
REARE B (20114 - 4®) o

14. BERER
FREAREERF BB TS E

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2012 2011
20124 20114F
Profit for the year attributable to RARERFFEE
owners of the Company (HK$'000) JE 15 2 S E 5 A
(F#&T) 197,584 114,659
Weighted average number of ordinary UG EZRER
shares for the purposes of basic and MESERA 2 EBR
diluted earnings per share INREFH BB 1,691,560,000 1,691,560,000
Earnings per share (HK cents) B &N (B
— Basic —HK 11.68 6.78
— Diluted (Note (a)) —#5E (it @) 11.68 6.78

(a) The Company did not have any potential ordinary
shares outstanding for the year ended 31 December
2012 (2011: nil). Diluted earnings per share is
therefore equal to basic earnings per share.

(@) EHZE2012F128318 IEFE - &NA 7 i &
FERARBITEEZTER (20114  £) -
it EREERNEGRERRFEE-
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318H It FE

15. WX -HEKRKE

(@) Group (a) A&
Leasehold Plant and Motor  Furniture and
improvements machinery vehicles fixtures Total
HEWELE RERKE Ef  GRR%E &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT
At 1 January 2011 R2011E1810
Cost AR 5,131 33,645 5,334 492 44,602
Accumulated depreciation e (2,180) (18,833) (1,931) (405) (23,349)
Net book amount REFE 2,951 14,812 3,403 87 21,253
Year ended 31 December 2011 & Z2011512A31H
LEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 2,951 14,812 3,403 87 21,253
Exchange differences R = 114 873 146 4 1,137
Additions RE 134 3,469 2,194 180 5,977
Disposals HE - (5.737) - 3) (5,740)
Depreciation e (1,585) (2,950) (1,064) (40) (5,639)
Closing net book amount EREEFE 1,614 10,467 4,679 228 16,988
At 31 December 2011 20115128318
Cost AR 5,433 23,583 7,872 677 37,565
Accumulated depreciation 2ETIE (3,819) (13,116) (3,193) (449) (20,577)
Net book amount REFE 1,614 10,467 4,679 228 16,988
Year ended 31 December 2012  #Z2012%12831H
LFEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 1,614 10,467 4,679 228 16,988
Exchange differences R = (8) (17) m (M @7
Additions B 3,177 7,674 701 35 11,587
Depreciation e (2.273) (4,713) (285) (67) (7.338)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 2,510 13,411 5,094 195 21,210
At 31 December 2012 RW2012%12A31R
Cost A 8,609 28,606 8,572 702 46,489
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (6,099) (15,195) (3,478) (507) (25,279)
Net book amount EHFE 2,510 13,411 5,094 195 21,210

Depreciation expense of HK$26,000 (2011: HK$29,000)
has been charged to selling and marketing costs and
HK$7,312,000 (2011: HK$5,610,000) in administrative

expenses.

Lease rental expenses amounting to HK$11,289,000
(2011: HK$7,572,000) relating to the lease of property are
included in the income statement.

1 & 5 & F126,000/8 T (20114 : 29,0007 7T )
EfFAEERTHEEKA  &7,312,000% 7T
(20114 : 5,610,000/ 7T ) B st ATTHR B X ©

BT E M MABEM11,289,0004 TH £ (2011
F:7,572,0008 ) EsF Al ER 2 HAER Y -

HEEFEEZERARAR 2012FF8H
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e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 & £2012F 128318 L F &

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥M¥ -BERRE (&)
(Cont'd)
(b) Company (b) A&2QF
Leasehold Motor  Furniture and
improvements vehicles fixtures Total
HEWMELE B ERREE =)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHEIT FHBT
At 1 January 2011 RH201151818
Cost XA 220 1,176 250 1,646
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (220) (1,146) (175) (1,541)
Net book amount REFE = 30 75 105
Year ended 31 December 2011 HZ201ME12R318LEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE - 30 75 105
Exchange differences ERER = (1 4 3
Additions NE - 544 71 615
Disposals HE = = 3) 3)
Depreciation e - (102) 27) (129)
Closing net book amount FREEFE - 471 120 591
At 31 December 2011 M2011%12A831H8
Cost XA 220 1,877 325 2,422
Accumulated depreciation Z3tE (220) (1,406) (205) (1,831)
Net book amount RHEFE - 471 120 591
Year ended 31 December 2012 HZ2012812831BILEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE - 47 120 591
Exchange differences ERE - (1) 1 -
Additions NE - 701 13 714
Depreciation neE - (237) (37) (274)
Closing net book amount FREEFE - 934 97 1,031
At 31 December 2012 2012412 A831H
Cost XA 220 2,578 329 3,127
Accumulated depreciation 2iE (220) (1,644) (232) (2,096)
Net book amount REFE - 934 97 1,031
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 & £2012F 128318 L F &

16. BFEE-F&H

Computer
software
B E 4
HK$'000
FETT
At 1 January 2011 R20115F1818
Cost PR AN 24,850
Accumulated amortisation S 3 (20,895)
Net book amount SR FE 3,955
Year ended 31 December 2011 HZE2011F128318 L FE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 3,955
Exchange differences MEH =5 11
Additions IR 9,039
Amortisation 5 (8,724)
Closing net book amount FRE@FE 4,281
At 31 December 2011 M2011%F12831H
Cost PR AR 35,121
Accumulated amortisation e i (30,840)
Net book amount BREFE 4,281
Year ended 31 December 2012 HZE2012%F128318 L FE
Opening net book amount FYIREFE 4,281
Exchange differences MEH =5 (34)
Additions INE 9,068
Amortisation N (9,644)
Closing net book amount FAREEFE 3,671
At 31 December 2012 M20125%F12H31H
Cost %N 44,183
Accumulated amortisation REr#E (40,512)
Net book amount BREFE 3,671

HEEFEEZERARAR 2012FF8H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318 It FE

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. WBARIKRE-ZAAT
— COMPANY
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
20125128318 2011F12H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TATT
Investments — unlisted equity interests, RE—FFE TR
at cost D NIE] 646,729 646,729
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note (b)) FEURBT B A B IE (AaEb)) 11,700 11,700
658,429 658,429
Less: provision for impairment R E R - -
658,429 658,429
(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 (@) FEMMBAF2012F 420119128318
December 2012 and 2011 are as follows: B

Registered and

Place of establishment Principal place of paid-in capital
Name and type of legal entity operation and activities R E K Interest held
2% B R A EMEE TEREMARER N FrsfEs
CEC Integrated Circuit PRC, limited liability PRC, design, research and US$12,000,000 100%
(Beijing) Co., Ltd company development and sale 12,000,0003 7T (Directly)
RESKER (ER) HE - EREEAR of integrated circuits (B#%)
BRAR HE - R E R 2R
e REE
Huada Electronics PRC, limited liability PRC, design, research and RMB50,000,000 100%
EAET company development and sale AR #50,000,0007T (Directly)
HE ARETAR of integrated circuits (E&)
TR R ER 2 RE
e MRS
(b)  The amounts due from subsidiaries are quasi-equity by EBURNBARREBEEMHD HAEE
in nature, unsecured, interest-free and with no fixed WiR -8 BEBETERE-

term of repayment.
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e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 & £2012F 128318 L F &

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS - GROUP

Available-for-sale financial assets represent unlisted equity
interest in companies established in the PRC and are
measured at costs less impairment at balance sheet date, as
these assets do not have a quoted market price, the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant and the
possibilities of the various estimates cannot be reasonably
assessed.

19. INVENTORIES - GROUP

18. AMHHEERHEE-F5E

AHHESREEREPERKRILI I EHRAN
Pk RORB R LASI BB IS ER - G AETH
AAERRBRAMBEESE AT ZEERRAA G
1 R AEE B AR BB ER G E -

19. BE-X&EE

31 December 31 December

2012 2011

2012512H31H 2011F12H831H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Work in progress £ 8o 84,852 49,244
Finished goods BN 223,333 219,213
308,185 268,457

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in cost of sales amounted to HK$670,805,000 (2011:
HK$636,477,000).

Provision for inventories of HK$21,001,000 (2011:
HK$8,345,000) has been charged to cost of sales.

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

ERBAXTFAAFEXRARAZFEKRAER R
670,805,000/ 7t (20114 : 636,477,000/ 7T ) °

A 2121,001,0005 7t (20114 : 8,345,000/ JT )
ZTEEREEFT ABEENA -

20. EZNRHEMEWE

Group Company
AEE PNV
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2012 2011 2012 2011
2012128318 2011412A31H 20125128318 20114F12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FAT FER FHATT
Trade receivables B 2 WA 488,304 417,770 - =
Less: provision for impairment — J& : JBl (B B
(Note (c)) (Ki#z(c)) (4,335) (19,295) - -
483,969 398,475 - -
Other receivables from related - fth fE U Ea B A £+
parties (Note 29) TIE (Hfat29) 265 134 2,807 218
Prepayments and deposits B I RZE 7,507 2,723 469 513
Other receivables H A W k1A 2,863 3,340 2 8
494,604 404,672 3,278 739

HEEFEEZERARAR 2012FF8H
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e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318 It FE

20.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Cont'd)

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, the carrying amounts of

trade a
approx

nd other receivables of the Group and the Company
imate their fair values.

All trade and other receivables were due within 1 year, non
interest-bearing and unsecured. Included in the balance of
trade receivables are trade receivables from related parties

of HK$

16,744,000 (2011: HK$16,239,000) (Note 29).

Trade and other receivables of the Group and the Company
at 31 December 2012 and 2011 are denominated in the
following currencies:

200 EFRNHEHMEWRFIE £)

M2012F K20115F12 8318 ZEB RA A G2
BNEMERFIBAZEREEE A AERS -

FIBE S REMBWHIEHYN —FREEH WEE
FFERERA T AESEUGKIBLEHRAZ B
R B N T B 5 3 IE 516,744,000 7T (20114 ¢
16,239,000 7T) (#fat29) °

ANEE MARNTN201249F K2011FE12A8318 2
B hEMEWRGFBRELE SMT :

Group Company
-] NN

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2012 2011 2012 2011
2012F12A318 20114128318 2012128318 2011412831H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT TR THT
Renminbi AR 493,238 399,727 369 231
US dollar e 541 3,420 - -
HK dollar BT 825 1,525 2,909 508
494,604 404,672 3,278 739

The majority of the Group’s sales are with credit
terms of 30 days to 135 days. The remaining
amounts are due immediately after the delivery of
goods. At 31 December 2012, the ageing analysis
of the trade receivables (net of provision for
impairment) are as follows:

(@) AEEZHEHERNBMHZEEHA30HZE135
H- ERHERBERERIMNFEREH R
2012F 124318 ' B 5 W I8 (05 R
BERE) ZREDWIT

31 December

31 December

2012 2011

20125128318 2011412A31H

HKS$'000 HK$'000

THET TATT

Current to 30 days 30HA 241,603 270,298
31 - 60 days 31HE60H 81,632 24,256
Over 60 days and within 1 year 60B LA ER1FERA 158,580 102,117
Over 1 year 1A E 2,154 1,804
483,969 398,475
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e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318H It FE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20.
(Cont'd)
(b) The trade receivables which were past due but (b)

not impaired amounted to HK$107,542,000 at
31 December 2012 (2011: HK$73,335,000).
These related to a number of customers with high
reputation for whom there is no recent history
of default, the ageing analysis of these trade

receivables are as follows:

BEZ REMEBWRE &)

MR2012% 128318 CEHETERELZ
B 5 W I8 A107,542,0007% 7T (2011
F :73,335,000870) © thEE F e WG IE
THEFEAFWEBRTIBLE I EER
HEFEBR HERIWTHOT:

31 December 31 December

2012 2011

2012%12A318 20114F12H31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FAET

Within 30 days 30EA 23,753 30,257
31 - 60 days 31HZE60H 35,735 29,137
Over 60 days and within 1 year 60B LA ERI1FER 45,900 12,137
Over 1 year 1A E 2,154 1,804
107,542 73,335

The other classes within trade and other receivables

do not contain impaired assets.

(c) Movements in the provision for impairment on the ()

Group's trade receivables are as follows:

CEYELL Te e PRtk T2 22
SREEE-

AEEE S RYSRRERE 2 ZEEHIT

31 December 31 December

2012 2011

2012%12A318H 2011412AH31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Beginning of the year F1 19,295 4,692
(Reversal of)/Impairment provision BB (B E), B (14,905) 14,071
Exchange difference MEHZER (55) 532
End of the year FR 4,335 19,295

HEEFEEZERARAR 2012FF8H
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & £2012F 128318 L F &

2. RERBRESEEY

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group Company
REE KA F]
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2012 2011 2012 2011
20125128318 201112A31H 20125128318 2011412H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FE T FHBIT
Cash Be
At banks and on hand WITEFRRS 218,637 167,756 3,355 9,567
At other financial institutions ~ H B F5#iE 417
— A related party (Note 29) L YN
(H1:£29) 46,864 29,874 46,864 24,670
265,501 197,630 50,219 34,237
Short term deposits REER
At banks RITHETF 159,321 63,017 3,853 11,202
At other financial institutions ~ H B F5#E 417
— A related party (Note 29) — A AL
(K1a£29) 51,797 68,806 24,665 49,340
211,118 131,823 28,518 60,542
476,619 329,453 78,737 94,779

The effective interest rate on short term deposits at 31
December 2012 was 1.42% (2011: 1.18%) per annum.
The maturity days of these deposits at 31 December 2012

were all within 90 days.

22. ISSUED EQUITY/SHARE CAPITAL

(a) Issued equity — Group

R2012F 128318  EHEARAZERFHN XA
1.42% (20114 : 1.18% ) ° FA201212H31H »
ZEEFERZINHPEHBYAEOBR -

22. BEITER KX
(a) BRITEZ-LAEE

Number of shares

Issued equity

RO E ERITER
‘000 HK$'000
T FHET
At 1 January 2011 and MR2011FE1818 R
at 31 December 2011 M2011%12831H 1,691,560 889,171
At 1 January 2012 and MR2012F1H818 &
at 31 December 2012 72012512H31H 1,691,560 889,171
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(a)

(ii)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318H It FE

ISSUED EQUITY/SHARE CAPITAL
(Cont'd)

Issued equity — Group (Cont'd)

The number of shares reflect the Company’s
ordinary share of HK$0.01 each issued and fully
paid.

On 10 December 2003, CEC, the Company,
the Company’s then holding company, Winsan
International Holdings Limited entered into a
sale and purchase agreement. Pursuant to the
agreement, the Company acquired CEC's 65%
equity interest in Shenzhen Sang Fei Consumer
Communications Company Limited (“Sang Fei”) (the
"“Acquisition”) and the consideration was satisfied
by the issuance of the Company’s 6,500,000,000
shares to CEC. The Acquisition was completed on
24 September 2004 and has been accounted for
as a reverse acquisition. For accounting purpose,
Sang Fei was regarded as the acquirer while the
Company and its then subsidiaries were deemed to
have been acquired by Sang Fei. Accordingly, the
amount recognised as issued equity of the Group,
which consisted of share capital and share premium,
has been determined by adding to the issued equity
of Sang Fei immediately before the completion of
the Acquisition the cost of the acquisition of the
Company and its then subsidiaries.

22,

(a)

(i)

(i)

CRITER BAEK &)

ERTEE-F&EH (&)

OB ERBARRFREEOIETLZ
BETABEEBA-

200312108 - HEHEFEE K
RAIRARAREKRAERRKREWInsan
International Holdings Limited%s] — 17 &
Bz o-REBEZBE AQFRKEREE
FEERRINEZFEEEBEBERAG ([F
JE1) M6 %R AR ([WHEIR]) - T
MrEEE #E BT A7]6,500,000,000
BREROTHEEFER 25 AT WHE
EIEER2004F9 A24B 5ERK - W IR IE—
BRKE -SEFREME - RIFFRIER
BA MARAREERHB QA8
RIEWRIEWEE - At - R ANEE D #
TSR (BEREAEEBRNRE) IR
EEWESETKAIRIEN S BEITER M
WIEARR R REERZWE ARG H KM
BE -

HEEFEEZERARAR 2012FF8H
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318 It FE

22,

(a)
(iif)

(b)

ISSUED EQUITY/SHARE CAPITAL
(Cont'd)

Issued equity — Group (Cont'd)

Upon the completion of the acquisition of the
entire equity interests of Huada Electronics (“Huada
Acquisition”) on 9 September 2009, 608,000,000
shares were allotted and issued, credited as fully
paid, to the then shareholders of Huada Electronics
as consideration shares at a price of HK$0.91
per share. The total consideration amounting to
HK$553,280,000 was presented as an increase
in share capital of HK$6,080,000 and increase in
share premium of HK$547,200,000 in the separate
financial statements of the Company in 2009. For
accounting purpose, the 393,680,000 shares issued
to China Integrated Circuit Design Corp., Ltd (“China
Huada”) as part of the Huada Acquisition were
presented as if they had been issued at the previous
balance sheet dates presented using the principles
of merger accounting as prescribed in Hong Kong
Accounting Guideline 5, and the opening balance
of the issued equity of the Group had been
increased by HK$358,249,000 in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. The remaining
214,320,000 shares issued to the other then
shareholders of Huada Electronics were accounted
for as transactions with non-controlling interests,
and the total consideration of HK$195,031,000 was
presented as an increase in the issued equity of the
Group on 9 September 2009.

Share capital - Company

22. ORITER BRE (&)

(a) CBITEZ-X&E (&)

(i)  H2009F9 9B WWEEEAE T2 2B/ A
Em ([ERRE])ENE NAREERE
ROMNBILZEBRAERFZEREFRR
it 3% & 217 A& 2£608,000,000R% B 1 ( A
RIVEBRIIEAHERGD ZRBRHEA
553,280,000/ 7T * 9 B 25K 2009F 2 &
N A)E B IS R R 2 AR AN 1L A06,080,000/%8
7T N B 7 45 {E 1 Hn547,200,000/8 7T ° S &
AREME  EAKWBRBEITLRPREKX
ERERRTEEEGRAR ([FEEKX])
2393,680,000fk D EIZE B LT3 5
SSFTIl 2 A EREARANEZYER A
ERERZINZEERBERAERIT H
REBZINRAEBGREMBRRE Z
ANEE B BT IE I1358,249,00078 T °
EEITER T 2214,320,0000% % D 45 & i 2 H
fthEE K E T AR SR B R A R JE o ) M A o i
TR ZAEREZER EEHEL27
BREEN2009F9 A998 B B 1THRER L N
195,031,0005% 7T ©

(b) BRAE-ZFRQT

Ordinary share of
HK$0.01 each

BREE0.01EBTZ
EBER
Issued and Share

Authorised fully paid  Share capital premium Total
EE EBERORARE (&S B 4335 8 =5
‘000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fhz TRz FAT FAT FAT

At 1 January 2011 and R2011E1A1B R
at 31 December 2011 R2011512831H 30,000,000 1,691,560 16,916 872,255 889,171

At 1 January 2012 and R20125F1 818 &
at 31 December 2012 R2012612831H 30,000,000 1,691,560 16,916 872,255 889,171
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318H It FE

23. OTHER RESERVES 23. HftufE
Group RE
Capital Surplus  Translation Merger Other
reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves Total
BERRE BRRE B AR ARG Hith i At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THBT TR THT
Note (a) Note (b) Note (c) Note (d)
Hiit @) HizEb) V=40, Hiztd)
At 1 January 2011 M2011E181A 930 16,309 38,125 (327,605) (69,130) (341,371)
Currency translation differences EMBnEER - - 20,133 - = 20,133
Reclassification EE Iy (930) - - - 930 =
At 31 December 2011 R2011£128318 - 16,300 58258 (327,605 (68,2000  (321,238)
At 1 January 2012 RW2012181A8 - 16,309 58,258 (327,605) (68,200) (321,238)
Currency translation differences BlmEEE - - 639 - - 639
At 31 December 2012 20126128318 - 16,309 58897  (327,605) (68,200  (320,599)
(@) Capital reserve (a) BEXRFE

Capital reserve represented the exchange differences arising
from foreign currencies received for Sang Fei’s paid-in
capital.

(b)  Surplus reserve

According to the laws and regulations of the PRC and
enterprise’s articles of association, the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries are required to provide for certain statutory
funds, namely, general reserve fund and enterprise
expansion fund, which are appropriated from profit after
taxation but before dividend distribution based on the
local statutory accounts prepared in accordance with
accounting principles and relevant financial regulations
applicable to enterprises established in the PRC. These PRC
subsidiaries are required to allocate at least 10% of its
profit after taxation to the reserve fund until the balance
of such fund has reached 50% of its registered capital.
Such appropriations are determined at the discretion
of the board of directors. The general reserve fund can
only be used, upon approval by the relevant authority, to
offset accumulated deficit or increase capital. Enterprise
expansion fund can be used to expand production or to
increase capital.

BEARERERIFRIINEEREAMEE ZER
ER-

(b) BERREE

REBHBOERIER  UREEZRARER AR
AETBEZHBARANREE TAEES 25l
R—RERESMEERBRES HAREES
Bt @R 2 G5 R AR ABREMEER R
RZBERETERB R ZBRERFTRERE DK
2 M AR ER o b B B A B A K A B R R
MEDI0%DEZFEES BEEZRBESHE
HEEHFMEARZS0% I - ERRAES
ENFEETE  —REFESECAFERILER
AR AFEE R ERREMER - CRERE
A ARNBEREESEMEAR -

HEEFEEZERARAR 2012FF8H
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23. OTHER RESERVES (cont'ad)
Group (Cont'd)

(c) Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the difference between the fair
value of the consideration shares issued to China Huada
and the 64.75% of paid-in capital of Huada Electronics
acquired from China Huada under common control.

(d) Other reserves

The amount recognised in other reserves includes the
difference between the issued equity immediately before
the disposal of Sang Fei (BVI) Company Limited and its
subsidiaries and share capital and share premium of the
Company, plus other reserve shared from Sang Fei upon
the completion of the disposal; and the difference between

23. Hi{#E &)
KEE(4F)

() AptEE

BOREEEERRES TRTEPEEAHER
MZARERREREEARFEZ264.75%FEAE
FTEWREARZEZRE-

(d) HftEE

FEHEMFEFEPERZ SR EE L ESang Fei (BVI)
Company Limited & EHIEB A 7] A 2 B 21T o 2
AABBRARBMDEEZ =5 M EREHETK
BOMBIFZEMEER REWBEKRETIEE
Pl MBI TERE FIEIES R
ZHERBZ AR EREERBLFIKEERE T

the fair value of consideration shares issued to non- ZEEFERAEIER-
controlling interests of Huada Electronics for the acquisition
of their interest in Huada Electronics and the Group's share
of the carrying value of net assets of Huada Electronics
acquired.
Company NN
Contributed
surplus
BEHRR
HK$'000
TR
At 1 January 2011 and R2011F1A1B R
at 31 December 2011 M2011512H31H 61,672
At 1 January 2012 and R2012F1A1B &
at 31 December 2012 M2012512H31H 61,672

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the
contributed surplus of the Company is distributable to
shareholders in certain circumstances as specified in section
54 thereof.

BREAREIBIFRTE XAFZEHAGA
RZGPIESMERMATRZETHERT 2K TR
%O
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318H It FE

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24, BEFREMENRIE
Group Company
TEE EAT
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2012 2011 2012 2011
20125128318 2011412A31H 2012128318 2011412A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FET TR FHBT
Trade payables 2 2 N IR 243,889 218,966 - =
Other payables from E fth & A B BSE A
related parties (Note 29) FRIE (B7aE29) 3,701 3,701 - -
Salary and welfare payables FE 1< B T % M 72,536 61,492 3,317 3,008
Deferred government grants  #EZE K /i 44 B
(Note (a)) (K@) 131,488 79,813 - -
Current income tax liabilities EHMGHAaE 14,771 2,013 - =
Other taxes payables o fth fE T AR IE 7,615 19,930 25 33
Other payables and o 5 R TE K
accrued expenses TERRE A 67,671 36,714 1,824 1,424
541,671 422,629 5,166 4,465
(@  Amount represents various subsidies granted by (@) mZREAAAREBERENFAZEEEmMAKHLS
and received from local government authorities AT A Y R 2 B A& 4 B o Lt 70 B S HR 2% B
for financing various research and development X Rz e BEERER 2K AEE
projects conducted by the Group. These subsidies Z BRI HER R UWA

will be recognised as income over the period
necessary to match with the cost that they are
intended to compensate.

At 31 December 2012, the ageing analysis of the Group's 2012512318 ANEBEE 5 B RIB 2 BRER
trade payables are as follows: DWW :

31 December 31 December

2012 2011

2012%12A318 2011412H31H

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHERT FHT

Current to 30 days 30HA 78,516 133,763

31 - 60 days 31HZ60H 76,376 25,739

Over 60 days 60H A & 88,997 59,464

243,889 218,966

HEEFEEZERARAR 2012FF8H
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & £2012F 128318 L F &

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont'd)

Included in the balance of trade payables are trade
payables to related parties amounted to HK$227,568,000
(2011: HK$167,452,000) (Note 29).

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, the carrying amounts
of trade and other payables of the Group and Company
approximate their fair values.

25. SHORT TERM BANK LOANS - GROUP

24, ESRHEMENRE &)

STANBESENRELEGANZEMNBEBRALE SR
18 &227,568,000/% 7T (20114 : 167,452,000/%
7t) (K132£29) »

M2012FE K2011E128310  AEE R ARAT 2
BHNEMEMNZFEZEMEREAREREE-

25. EHIRTER-4AKHEH

31 December 31 December

2012 2011

20125128318 201112A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FETT

Unsecured 48 $ 46 1,233 24,670

The bank loans at 31 December 2012 were repayable
within one year and bear interest at the average borrowing
rate of 6.00% per annum (2011: 6.56%).

The short term bank loans are all denominated in Renminbi
and their carrying amounts approximate their fair values.

The Group has undrawn committed banking facilities
of HK$72,763,000 at 31 December 2012 (2011:
HK$49,340,000).

R2012F12831H SRITEXER —FARNEER
BB EEEFNE6.00% (20114 :6.56% ) 5t
E\o

MHRTEFRAUARBE MEKEERER
NAERE-

R2012F12A31H AEBEHRBAZE EH
RITEE®E AR A72,763,000/ 7T (20114 -
49,340,000/ 7T ) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE2012%12A318H It FE

26. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 26 REELEZRE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit before taxation BR 5t Bl g A 225,523 131,229
Adjustments for: TR
Depreciation of property, W HE R
plant and equipment REIE 7,338 5,639
Amortisation of intangible assets | A E 9,644 8,724
Interest income A2 WA (3,740) (2,928)
Interest expenses FEZH 546 1,646
Share of loss of an associate paki=y: k- W/NCISE | - 253
Gain on disposal of an associate ek RN g - (1,053)
Gain on disposal of property, EEME -BE K
plant and equipment FE R (14) (619)
239,297 142,891
Changes in working capital LEESEY
Inventories & (39,728) (7,820)
Trade and other receivables 25K E M e FRIE (89,932) (131,933)
Trade and other payables B 5 & H e~ 518 109,531 93,969
Cash generated from operations KEEEZRS 219,168 97,107
27. COMMITMENTS 27. E¥E
Operating lease commitments e 1 B R IE

The Group and the Company'’s future aggregate minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases for
factories and office premises are as follows:

REBEAARRBRENURSGZHBERPAE
EREHEMERRRI N ZEHERER
BmaR

Group Company
AEE AR

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2012 2011 2012 2011
20125128318 20114128318 2012%12A318 20114128318
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TAT TET FHT
Not later than one year 1E R 13,649 5,874 1,689 1,375
In the second to fifth year E2FEEFSFN 18,352 1,380 39 1,252
32,001 7,254 1,728 2,627

HEEFEEZERARAR 2012FF8H
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & £2012F 128318 L F &

28. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liability at
31 December 2012 (2011: nil).

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

In addition to those transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following material transactions in
the ordinary course of business with related parties during
the year:

(a) Significant transactions with companies under

28. HEEE

R20128F 128318 AEB Y BETREAKEE
& (20114 #) o

29. BBATIRZ RE&EER

BRAGEMBRREMIENERBENR S R ME
N MAFERAARER B EXKBED HEEE
BATETT TISEERRS:

(a) HEXPEHEEFEEHAFEFZAFTAZEKR

common control of CEC X5
Year ended 31 December

BZ12A310LLEE
2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FET
Sales of products HEE MW 101,099 60,775
Purchase of goods and services HEEm &R 584,997 489,637
Interest received L B FI) B, 1,235 1,164
Rental paid XfEE 941 564
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & £2012F 128318 L F &

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Cont'd)

(b) Significant balances with companies under

29. BEMATXRERES (&)

(b) BIRPEEFEEAFEHFHZIATZEX

common control of CEC =3
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
20125%12A31H 2011412A831H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade receivables 2 ZEWRIE 16,744 16,239
Other receivables H b e W SR8 265 134
Deposits TR 98,661 98,680
Trade payables B EMNRIA 227,568 167,452
Other payables H h fE 1~ 30IB 3,701 3,701

Other than the deposits which is interest bearing, the
above balances with related parties were unsecured,
interest-free and settled according to the contract terms.

(c) Transactions with an associate

BRERBM BN DB A TSRS EER
REWREERGRER -

() HEBEQATZIXS

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31ALLEE
2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE&x FHET
Sales of products HEE MW - 29,904

HEEFEEZERARAR 2012FF8H
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & £2012F 128318 L F &

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 29. BEBMAIXRIRES (&)
BALANCES (Cont'd)

(d) Key management compensation (d) FEEBEAEM2

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLLEE
2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FETT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMAEYES 2,864 3,527
Contributions to retirement schemes RRETEIE R 152 130
3,016 3,657
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Set out below is a summary of the financial information of
the Group for the last five financial years.

Five-year Financial Summary

IFMBENRE

AT RASEAEDTEMBFERNHERBR -

RESULTS E 4
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31ALLEE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
20124 20114 20105 20094 20084
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FTAT FHT FHET FHT
(Restated)
(551)
(1)
Continuing operations SECE 2 ¥
Revenue WA 1,155,632 995,111 574,586 460,533 621,805
Profit before taxation B 250 Al i A 225,523 131,229 63,126 60,995 121,571
Taxation B (27,939) (16,570) (3,185) (7,171) (16,997)
Profit for the year from SRS EB 2
continuing operations R % A 197,584 114,659 59,941 53,824 104,574
Loss for the year from BRIEERB2EKZ
discontinued operation AEEEHE - - - (15,819) (324,068)
Profit/(Loss) for the year AEERF,/ (BE) 197,584 114,659 59,941 38,005 (219,494)
Attributable to: HERN:
Owners of the Company RACERHEE 197,584 114,659 59,941 41,072 (146,327)
Non-controlling interests FEPE Gl - - = (3,067) (73,167)
197,584 114,659 59,941 38,005 (219,494)

HEEFEEZERARAR 2012FF8H
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Five-year Financial Summary (con:a)

EFHEEREE »)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE

31 December

12A31H
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
20124 20114 20104 20094 2008%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERx FATT FATT FAT FATT
(Restated)
(&5)
(i)
Total assets BERE 1,348,706 1,054,878 858,146 732,790 2,001,367
Total liabilities BEBE (542,904) (447,299) (385,359) (328,461)  (1,445,066)
Non-controlling interests FEFE MR = - - - = (117,226)
805,802 607,579 472,787 404,329 439,075
@) The financial summary for the year ended 31 December 2008 (i) #H£2008F 12 A31H ILFE 2 M E R ZE THERA

are restated using the principles of merger accounting as
prescribed in Hong Kong Accounting Guideline 5, details of
which are set out in Note 2.1 of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2009.
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Room 3403, 34th Floor,
China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
BREFBEE265

B KE341E3403F

Tel E5E: (852) 2598 9088
Fax &K : (852) 2598 9018

www.cecholding.com
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